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The translation into Chinese language of this annual report is for reference only.
In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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Financial Results and Business Review

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$516.4 million
(2017: HK$549.0 million) and a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of HK$159.3 million (2017: a loss of HK$159.1 million). Details of the
financial results and business performance and development are set out in

the Directors’ Report on pages 54 to 70.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.59 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$0.60 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share during the year
(2017: HK$0.60 per share), the total distribution will be HK$1.19 per share
for the year (2017: HK$1.20 per share).

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on

Wednesday, 12 September 2018.

Acknowledgement

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholdersNete and
is therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices
and procedures, and identified and formalised appropriate measures and

policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk
management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the
management, the Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation
in their capacity as Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from
taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is,
subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. In view of the above, the Board considers that the Directors’

exposure to risk is manageable.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”) throughout this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with differing expertise/
calibre who can provide a “check and balance” effect on the management
through their high attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring
a balance of power. Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of
Directors is of the view that the current structure does not have any adverse
effect on the Company and believes that this structure enables the Group to

make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision A.5.1: Issuer should establish a
nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an INED and comprises a
majority of its members as INEDs

Following the passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam on 25 July 2017,
the nomination committee then only consisted of 4 members (including 2
Executive Directors and 2 INEDs) which resulted in the nomination committee
not comprising a majority of members who were INEDs as required under

this code provision.

To rectify this situation, Mr Wong Yiu Tak was appointed as an INED and a
member of the nomination committee on 3 October 2017. Subsequent to
the appointments, the Company complies with this code provision as the
nomination committee comprises 5 members with a majority of whom as

INEDs since then.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does not
pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the disclosure
of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision C.2.5: Issuer should have an internal
audit function and review the need for one in case of
its absence annually

At present, the Company does not have an internal audit function. The Board
reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit function in March 2018
and considered that there was no such an immediate need after taking into
account the Group’s current circumstances, such as the focused nature and
geographical spread of business, the relatively simple operating structure
and small size of the Group and the close involvement and supervision
of the management in daily operation, which could provide sufficient risk
management and internal control for the Group. Despite it, the Board has
taken initiatives to promote the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by creating a control environment
across the Group (such as building up a corporate culture based on
sound business ethics and accountability through the implementation of
“whistle-blowing” arrangements and procedure manuals with defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines) and putting control activities in place (such
as conducting group-wide risk assessment exercise regularly). In addition,
where the external auditor of the Company considers any internal controls
that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements, it will report to the
audit committee any significant deficiencies in internal control identified

during the audit.

In view of the above considerations and the potential cost to be involved, the
Board is of the opinion that it is not cost effective to set up and maintain an
internal audit function and that the existing control mechanism could justify
its absence for the time being. Nonetheless, the Board will review the need

for an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the Deputy Chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the Deputy
Chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the Deputy Chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the Deputy Chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2018.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2018

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (passed away on 25 July 2017)

Mr Wong Yiu Tak (appointed with effect from 3 October 2017)
Mr Lee Chung

Following the passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam on 25 July 2017, the
Board then comprised eight members (including five Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and two INEDs) and the Company was therefore
not in compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which
respectively stipulate that every board of directors of a listed company
must include at least 3 INEDs, and a listed company must appoint INEDs

representing at least one-third of its board of directors.

In order to fulfill the said requirements, Mr Wong Yiu Tak was appointed as
an INED of the Company with effect from 3 October 2017 (which is within
the 3-month grace period in accordance with Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules).
Subsequent to his appointment, the number of INEDs of the Company
meets the minimum number as required under the said Rule 3.10(1) and

represents one-third of the Board as required under the said Rule 3.10A.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong
Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter of
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,
overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and
management performance, corporate governance, risk management and

internal control systems of the Group.

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors (including INEDs) are invited to serve on these Board committees
according to the benefits brought by their participation in view of their
individual experience and skills. To assist the committees in discharging
their roles adequately, each committee is provided with a committee policy,
setting out guidelines for its members to follow in the process of decision-
making. Duties and authorities of these committees are also set out in their
respective terms of reference. To keep the Board fully informed of their
works and findings, these committees are required to report to the Board on

a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 on a going concern basis, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the
revised accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 81.

Seven board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
Individual attendance of the Directors at board meetings, board committee
meetings and annual general meeting in the year under review is set out

below:

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\BEIFEEA R A T
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Board of Directors (continued)

HEERRY FERLEEENY
Meetings attended/eligible to attend

N ARRHABHAMREETG AT MEESSS
o RAZRBEEANERZEREEE K-

¢ ERBALA-TLE+AZAREEEARAR
BUNTESRFHEAS  HEEARNERE
BEME - EREN  AATRBNSRERTRH
RHHERREH RLERREANEREALE
HEMR -

4 yizee REZEE ENZEE RRAEAS
Annual
Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BPROEER
HEzEE  YREMEE ay
Covering
corporate
4 govemance-  Covering other
Directors related matters matters Total
HITEE
Executive Directors
ERELE(TE) 2/2 5/5 i TER 34 TNEA 11
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) NA NA
EENEE(SEE) 212 505 7 TER 444 TER 1
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) NA NA
EMELE 22 5/5 m TER TER TER 1/1
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi NA NA NA
E4BEE 2/2 5/5 n TEH TR TER 11
Mr Cheong Sim Lam NA NA NA
a5/ MA 212 4/5 6/7 TER ik o 1
Miss Cheong Chong Ling NA NA NA
FHTEE
Non-executive Director
HEREE 1/2 5/5 6/7 34 TER 3/4 11
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles NA
BUFRTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
AEBEE 2/2 5/5 " 4/4 4/4 4/4 1
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
HhEBEE gl 17 2/2 1N 17 1 0/0
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam*
EEEL il 212 33 212 2/2 2/2 0/0
MrWong Yiu Tak?
FihtE 212 5/5 n 4/4 4/4 4/4 1
Mr Lee Chung
=T 2 5 7 4 4 4 1
Total number of meetings
" hEBEEN-_T—+F+A -+ R BB - EEE " Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam passed away on 25 July 2017. During his tenure, two

board meetings and one meeting in respect of each of the remuneration

committee, nomination committee and audit committee were held.

# Mr Wong Yiu Tak was appointed as an INED and a member of the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and audit committee of the Company with
effect from 3 October 2017. During his tenure, three board meetings and
two meetings in respect of each of the remuneration committee, nomination

committee and audit committee were held.
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Board of Directors (continued)

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, the newly appointed INED received a formal
and tailored induction on appointment. All Directors were furnished with
quarterly memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge
relating to legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast
of the latest developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements,
the company secretary also provided updates directly or through other
professionals to the Board as and when necessary. During the financial year
ended 31 March 2018, the Company organised in-house training courses
in relation to strategic direction, rules and regulations for the Directors and
reviewed the adequacy of training received by them. The Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums
and conferences on their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the

Company, subject to the Company’s policy.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March

2018 is set out below:

womwE
HERE HAiTBAR
= HEAL
BE = HEER FEER R
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading  other executives/
o Directors conferences materials professionals
HITEF Executive Directors
EEEEE(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
EEMEE(BIF/E) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) V V
BB E Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N N
[zpoteapites Mr Cheong Sim Lam V N
$EIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling v N
FHPITEE Non-executive Director
piilizh it Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles v Y N
BUIHHITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEERE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N N
IEBEER_ZT—LF Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (passed N
+tAZ+HAR) away on 25 July 2017)
EREEE(RZE—LF Mr Wong Yiu Tak (appointed with V N
+AZ=ZALMF) effect from 3 October 2017)
TN Mr Lee Chung V N

i BRPHRRAIEIGEN)BEER ¢ @FIRRRIF

QREE AR °

Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules

and regulations and (3) strategic direction.
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst INEDs
(except the one appointed during the year under review to fill the casual
vacancy whose appointment is for a fixed term from 3 October 2017 to
the conclusion of the 2018 annual general meeting) are appointed for the
period commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting
to the conclusion of the following annual general meeting. Other than the
INED appointed to fill the casual vacancy who shall retire at the next general
meeting, all other Non-executive Director and INEDs are, according to the
Company'’s Articles of Association, required to retire by rotation at least once
every three years. All retiring Non-executive Director and INEDs are eligible

for re-election.

The Company has received confirmation from each INED about his
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
each of them to be independent. One of the INEDs possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and senior management of suitable calibre by remunerating them
at a competitive level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established
a remuneration committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no
Director or his/her associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating

to his/her own remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three INEDs and one
Non-executive Director. They are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee
chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Wong Yiu Tak (who was appointed
as a member of the committee with effect from 3 October 2017 following
the passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam on 25 July 2017) and Mr Lee
Chung. The main duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the terms of reference of the
committee; to assist the Company in formulating remuneration policy and
structure for Directors and senior management; to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals; to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management; to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the Non-executive Director and INEDs; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of Non-
executive Director and INEDs annually. For all other staff, it is the Executive
Directors who fix their remuneration packages on the recommendations of

their respective department heads on an annual basis.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 25 to the financial
statements on page 139, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration committee
held four meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference
of the committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management; and made recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and
INEDs, including the newly appointed one. The attendance record of each

remuneration committee member is set out in the table on page 13.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three INEDs. The members are Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee
chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Wong Yiu
Tak (who was appointed as a member of the committee with effect from
3 October 2017 following the passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam on
25 July 2017) and Mr Lee Chung.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of INEDs; to assess the mix in terms of gender, age and
qualifications required on the Board; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the chief executive, and on the need of setting measurable objectives
for implementing the Board diversity policy. Details of the nomination
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The
said terms of reference are published on the websites of the Company and
the HKEXx.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the nomination committee
held four meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee,
the Board diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for
implementing the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on
the Board; made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; reviewed the suitability with particular regard to
the independence of the candidate nominated as INED and recommended
the Board on his appointment; assessed the independence of the INEDs;
and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments of the
INEDs, Non-executive Director and Directors who were subject to retirement

by rotation.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for appointment and re-
appointment of a Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not
only the skills and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her
value to the Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition
of the Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection
process. For the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also
focuses on age and professional experience. Selection of female candidates
or candidates of a particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is,
in part, dependent on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills,
knowledge and experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and
contribution likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes
that, with the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to
the needs and expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and

tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to

the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The procedures and criteria for nomination of new Directors are delineated
in the nomination policy. In October 2017, the nomination committee,
after having reviewed the Board’s then composition and the mix required
on the Board, nominated Mr Wong Yiu Tak to the Board for filling the
casual vacancy resulted from the passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-
nam. The nomination was made in accordance with the nomination
policy with due consideration given to the diversity issues as set out in
the Board diversity policy and the objective criteria, such as age, gender,
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
independence guidelines as laid down in the Listing Rules were also taken

into account in the nomination procedure.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination committee (Continued)

As regards re-election of a Director, the relevant process is set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association, which require that (i) every Director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who
are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the
next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies
shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual general
meeting) and Directors so appointed are eligible for re-election. The
attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out in the

table on page 13.

Audit committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEX.

The audit committee currently comprises three INEDs and the Non-executive
Director. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman),
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Wong Yiu Tak (who was appointed as a
member of the committee with effect from 3 October 2017 following the

passing away of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam on 25 July 2017) and Mr Lee Chung.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit committee (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the audit committee met
four times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor; reviewed the half-year and annual financial statements
of the Group, including integrity and significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein, before submission to the Board for approval; discussed
with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and determined
the scope and extent of the interim review before commencement; met the
external auditor without the presence of executive board members of the
Company; and considered and made recommendations to the Board on the
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties, the audit
policy, the terms of reference of the committee and the risk management

policy.

The audit committee during the year under review also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by monitoring the risk change during the year, assessing the adequacy of
the mitigating strategies used and the impact of the identified risks on the
Group. It also evaluated the need of setting up an internal audit function by
considering the current internal control mechanism and the pros and cons of
doing so. The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out

in the table on page 13.

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the seven board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2018, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board reviewed and modified the general
code of conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
and reviewed corporate governance policies and practices including
those relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two

board meetings is set out in the table on page 13.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$798,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$257,000 to the Group, which included HK$61,000 and
HK$196,000 being charges for tax services and review of the interim results

of the Group respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Responsibility
The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.

To this end, the Board, assisted by the audit committee, oversees the
foregoing systems on an ongoing basis by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social
and governance-related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management

and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Although the said systems are complemented by relevant procedure and
measures for the purpose of safeguarding the interests of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole, they are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process

As risk management is the responsibility of everyone within the Group
and something more than a formality, it is integrated into the day-to-day
operation and carried out at all levels under the stewardship of the Board.
In order to create a control environment across the Group to support the
risk management and internal control systems, the Company is committed
to building up a corporate culture based on business ethics, control
responsibility and risk awareness. To accomplish this, the Company has
adopted a general code of conduct to govern the integrity and ethical
behaviour of employees in business practices. Procedure manuals
delineating reporting lines and areas of responsibility of each department/
operating unit are laid down and are under review from time to time. In
addition, arrangements for employees to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in any matters in relation to the Group or any
non-compliance with the Company’s policies are in place. All policies,
procedure and guidelines with defined limits of delegated authority are put in

writing so as to enhance effective segregation of duties and controls.

On top of fostering a risk management culture, the Board adopts a bottom-
up approach to identify the Group’s operational risks. Instead of setting
up a separate department charged with the risk-related issues, it gets
all departments/operating units involved. Under the current systems, all
department/unit heads are required to establish risk factors specific to their
responsible areas, determine impact as well as likelihood of identified risks
in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board and develop mitigating
strategies. They shall maintain a risk register containing the said information
and update it on a regular basis. In order to provide the Board and the audit
committee with an overview of the Group’s operational risks and how they
are managed, the management scrutinises, filters, amends and compiles
relevant information, together with findings of the strategic risk identification
performed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board, as a composite
risk report to the Board/the audit committee for review and endorsement.
The external auditor also has access to the risk registers and composite risk
report. During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, such risk assessment

exercise was done on a half-yearly basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process (Continued)

In the absence of an internal audit function (reasons for its absence are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 5 to 9),
the Board has appointed a qualified accountant, who is also the accounting
manager of the Group, to carry out sample testing on procedure compliance
and risk-related issues in respect of all departments/operating units. Test
results and findings are reported to the audit committee on an annual basis.
Heads of the departments/operating units which may have a significant
financial implication on the Group’s revenue are required to make an annual
representation to the audit committee confirming that all potential risks in
relation to their scope of work are properly dealt with. The management will
then review the situation and provide the Board/the audit committee with an
annual confirmation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Being part of the internal control process, the Group has maintained a
comprehensive accounting system for ensuring complete and accurate
financial information. Annual budgets as regards rental income and operating
expenses of ISQUARE, the Group’s main source of revenue, are prepared
for effective allocation and utilisation of resources. As regards outgoings,
the Group has established procedure for approval and control of operating
expenditures whilst the capital ones are subject to management approval
prior to commitment. Other control measures including provision of monthly
management accounts to Directors and preparation of variance analyses

help identify deficiencies and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Handling of inside information

Concerning inside information, the Company has implemented various
policies to govern how it shall be handled. Policy on disclosure of inside
information sets out the manner in which inside information is escalated
and disseminated whereas the risk management policy provides ways to
deal with risks which may constitute inside information. Besides, the general
code of conduct adopted by the Group prohibits inappropriate use of
confidential or inside information. All employees are required to undertake
their adherence to the said code and report any non-compliance with it to

the management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Handling of inside information (Continued)

For the purpose of complying with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to inside information, the Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code. Relevant procedure for guarding against mishandling of inside
information include pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
by designated Directors and notification of black-out period to Directors. In
order to remind Directors and employees of their obligations in securities

transaction, they are provided with memoranda on a quarterly basis.

Review of effectiveness

Although the management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems,
the Board and the audit committee oversee the process. In March 2018,
the Board, with the confirmation from the management certifying that the
aforesaid systems were functioning effectively and the assistance of the
audit committee, conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the financial year ended
31 March 2018. Such review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the review result, the Board
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal control and
financial reporting functions were adequate and that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and apposite to the Group
though no in-house or outsourced internal audit function has been set up as
required by the CG Code. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of

concern which should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As with any business, the Group faces risks and uncertainties on a daily
basis. In determining the principal risks posed to the Group, the Board takes
into account the overall severity level (based on the impact and likelihood
matrix) of the risks set out in the composite risk report and their changes
during the financial year. It also examines their nature and impact on the
Group and evaluates the effectiveness and suitability of the mitigating
strategies as applied by taking into consideration the actual operation and

performance of the Group.
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[ B ' B 2 PR P S 2 ) Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
FERBETHBEERZE @) Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
WAREEEEAEWIREBRFHEY] - LTEX According to the prioritisation of risks from the Group’s overall perspective,
EEBERmENEZERR - A B IFEE2 0 the following are identified as principal risks currently encountered by the
ZHEMER - BEBAEEETBRELN 2 Group. That said, they are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive. There
HEAEXTIZRMBOEMER - #HATERR may be other risks which may not be material now but could turn out to be

RUGEHEESUE

CHEERAASENE

such in the future. Although the principal risks may not change significantly

SO - BREEEE - from year to year, their magnitude and importance to the Group can and do
vary.
BNTEREE  AEEERR
WER k-2l gt TEEERERERHE
Risk change

Risk during the year

pertaining to under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Investment o Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Enabling revenue growth is an effective means to counter

properties (‘IPs”)

Group’s IPs are stated at fair values in the consolidated
statement of financial position whilst changes thereof are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Given the relatively heavy weighting of the IPs in the
Group’s property portfolio, any significant change in the
valuation of the IPs can seriously affect the Group’s profit/
loss for the year. As one of the key drivers of the valuation
of the IPs is rental income which can be volatile and there
has been continual downward pressure on rental level
in particular in Tsim Sha Tsui area during the year under
review, further valuation losses are largely expected.
Notwithstanding the valuation change, fair value gains/
losses will not affect the Group’s cash flow.

Due to the current financial reporting requirements,
valuation changes have influenced and will continue to
influence the Group’s profit/loss.

adverse impact caused by valuation losses. Measures
taken by the Group include the following:

o To preserve quality of the IPs by carrying out
maintenance and enhancement works

o Toimprove tenant mix

e Tostay alert to the market/tenant needs for
maintaining competitiveness

e Tolaunch creative and popular promotions so as to
increase exposure and add value to the IPs
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

BNTEREE  AEERR
HER k=214 gt FTEEERERERHE
Risk change
Risk during the year
pertaining to under review Desctription Key controls and mitigations
ME & BATBIREH R BB KBTS - B o ZHMBRANETSREARE NOEEKT
REHTBMTEMHERNEBE - AFE 2 HekT
PEEHSABE SN TERRMELINNE TR o RENGESHPERARES UERARE
N BEENRNER  MBLRY AEHEREES Mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HEIRAIANESRT - M ERESZ BRI
ERED - ERERNTERN  BPEONERTE o NEREPREREERNEH
HE o
o BRHENEPESREARENHNZEER
ﬁFEKEFU%?m&@ﬁJﬁémﬂﬁW; g
REBHRELIZE FEDENARERATROAH o FHEPRERBIEREPERHEEER
TR REEMEBKTREEREL
o ERGRPHEBLETHMERR
Leasing o Despite the fact that the retail market has become stable as o Tokeep abreast of the market condition so as to set

aresult of an overall rebound in number of tourists to Hong
Kong and a less strong Hong Kong dollar, together with a
relatively steady economic growth, downward pressure on
rental level continued during the year under review given
the anticipated increase in new supply of retail premises in
Tsim Sha Tsui area. Change in consumer behaviour, such
as online shopping, also posed pressure on increase in
vacancies at ISQUARE as it reduces the demand for bricks-
and-mortar shops and leads to more competition. In view
of the prevailing retail conditions, the risk of tenants’ default
may continue.

Since the number of tenancies due for renewal or rent
review during the year in question is not large and the
mitigating strategies can, to a certain extent, help alleviate
the unfavourable impact brought by the aforesaid situation,
there was no significant change in risk exposure in the year
under review.
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the rental at a reasonable but competitive rate

o To take ongoing initiatives to invite targeted tenants to
iSQUARE and appoint competent real estate agents
to market vacant spaces

e Toadopt a more cautious approach on tenant
selection

o Tomaintain a well-balanced tenant mix and manage
tenancy expiries and vacancies

e Toincrease tenancy deposit and closely monitor
tenants’ payment record

o To conduct direct engagement with tenants and
monitor their financial performance
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

WER k214 gt TEEERERERHER
Risk change
Risk during the year
pertaining to under review Description Key controls and mitigations
ANER o BT ARBRREMNEI(RAIENGET)RBHBER  « BHNEIHMNEHNNESH

BHEE - LERRAFRRE o

o RETREAEDIMEE

¢ RERRIRUBEZS  WHEFRAFAR
MER

o BESAGWNEERINER

Manpower o Insufficient supply of experienced and skilled personnel, in o Toreview the competitiveness of salary and benefits
particular front-line staff, has long been an issue in service of staff
industry. Such situation continued during the year under

review. o To provide staff with relevant outside training
e Toset up areliever pool for front-line staff so as to
provide a temporary relief of shortage of manpower
o To strengthen communication with staff through daily
briefing
BERBRRIZ & ARASEEFTENEBREN  BENARBER o BUERGLRE UEAKERCERRRE
SERERAME TR AR RERE - 250 TH BEEERIRRE

BRZ - MABHEE
RREES - &S

EYRIRE, YA LRIk

EARENMBRR - RAFR o HURHHOREREREEFABKTERERD

i/ ERAOTE REERFTEBESE - SR
Economic and o As the Group’s operation is mainly based in Hong Kong, e To closely monitor the operating environment so as
political outlook any adverse change in political and economic climate to enable prompt adjustment to corporate strategies
in Hong Kong could disrupt its overall business. Global and business activities

uncertainties, such as terrorist attack, can also impact on

travelling and spending patterns of tourists/shoppers which o Tomaintain a solid financial position with strong cash
in tumn affect the financial performance of the Group. There flow and a low gearing level

was no apparent improvement in local/global political and

economic conditions during the year under review.

& 0 BBKEEE

PR RIS R AR R IR HT R A BN E R
NEH 2 EZRBRMTEROTZEIN  ERENE
FHRRAGTEAAREHAEEMBREATEZ
BIEER o

Note:
& Risk level remains broadly the same

In addition to monitoring the impact of the principal risks that the Group is
now facing by adjusting its corporate strategies and mitigating measures,
the management will keep observing if there is any emerging risk which may

affect the Group significantly on a regular basis.

Annual Report 2017-2018 F 3§

29



30

TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

IR BB R
BB EMEMRREARERE - ARTBN A
# B IROB BRI -

REEN
ARFZARBAIUF - HXES - WEA
WA BRI SRER - REXHEE
BENBRERETRARNALT B -

FIEARRRINRZEMNERT SRR EHNA
A E)4g (http:/ainl.etnet.com.hk/c/ca_calendar.php) ©

ARBEBERBRFIRRER  IRAR
AERGHBHER RBE-_T—-N\F=A
=+ HUEMRFEAR  ARRLEALAZE
TRARIELEERT ©

SE2E HEBE
ARRBRRAFARGERBRREETSRE—E®
HEBBHF A - ARRSERRE B2 MR
REHMERELE  MEZERKRKELFE - X
EELESERE -EFENE  BHHlEESE
ITREEFEE T 28R B E(HEZAR
R) - BBNEIEAE MARRE]ZINERZBANE —
RERTHEHFERREAFAGUNDERR 212
M e

Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://aihl.etnet.com.hk/eng/ca_calendar.php) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2018, there were no changes made to the

Articles of Association of the Company.

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)
Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

o If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they represent at least:

(@)

2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the

request relates; or

50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at

the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@

be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

identify the proposed resolution;

be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the

AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

notice of the AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and

upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified

as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the

Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@ must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company; and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them may themselves call a GM, and the meeting
so convened must be called for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the requirement
to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the GM by reason of the

failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such GM (“Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

() be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(o) identify the statement to be circulated;

(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d)  be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\BEIFEEA R A T

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

() if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(b) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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Approach and Strategy

Being a responsible enterprise, the Company is not only concerned with
its financial growth but also its non-financial performance. The Company
recognises that the manner in which it delivers business will impact on
the environment and society. As such, the management strives to make a
positive contribution to the sustainability development of the environment
and society by integrating the socially responsible practices in its daily
operation. The Executive Directors are responsible for driving environmental
and social responsibilities initiatives and reviewing their practices for
performance improvement whilst the Board assumes an overall responsibility

for the Company’s environmental and social strategy and reporting.

Reporting Scope

This Corporate Social Responsibility Report provides a review on the Group’s
performance of its environmental and social responsibilities for the financial
year ended 31 March 2018. As iISQUARE is the Group’s main business

operation, its performance is included herein unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Its content is determined through a process which involves
identification of stakeholders and relevant issues in relation to environmental
and social responsibilities and prioritisation of the issues to be reported
after taking into account the stakeholders’ expectations and the Group’s
unique business nature. In this report, only the environmental and social
responsibilities initiatives and performance that are material and/or relevant
to the Group and its stakeholders are outlined. During the financial year
ended 31 March 2018, the Company complied with all the “comply or

explain” provisions, where applicable, set out in the Guide.

Stakeholders’ Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To truly understand the views and expectations of the stakeholders on
sustainability development, the Company keeps ongoing communication
with its key stakeholders. During the year under review, the Company
engaged its shareholders, employees, business partners and tenants
through face-to-face discussions and/or questionnaires. Reporting issues
are identified according to the impact of the issues on the Group’s business
and stakeholders as evaluated by the management and the stakeholders

respectively.
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Environmental Issues

Policy

Since the management acknowledges that the Group shall take into account
the impact of its business operation on the environment while achieving
financial growth, the Group has adopted an environmental policy with a

focus on the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements

2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection where practicable
3. promoting environmental awareness among staff
4, adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation
5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way
6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials
7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and

encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Initiatives

In order to support environmental conservation, the Group, in addition to its
practice of last year in collecting used/useless lai see packets for recycling,
participated in the lai see reuse programme organised by Greeners Action
during the year under review by sponsoring it for the event and providing
iISQUARE as one of the collection points. The Group also took part in “Earth
Hour 2018” and “Hong Kong No Air Con Night 2017” organised by World
Wide Fund for Nature (“WWF”) and Green Sense respectively so as to raise

environmental awareness in the workplace.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance:

o using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps
° using FSC-certified A4 paper

o disposing of used paper which is good for recycling through a paper

recycling company

. employing multi-zone lighting controls
o returning used toners/cartridges to suppliers for recycling
o using environmentally friendly paper for printing corporate

communication to shareholders

. switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not

in use

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, iISQUARE, being the Group’s main business operation, also
takes proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, it
participated in “Earth Hour 2018” as organised by WWF and provided venue
at a substantially discounted rate to WWF for hosting a wildlife conservation

campaign.
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Initiatives (continued)

In addition to the aforesaid, iISQUARE keeps employing those green

measures it has been using, such as:
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o use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
o diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
o shortening daily operating hours of lights with devices, such as

multi-zone lighting controls, and air-conditioning at common areas

accessible by shoppers where possible

o encouraging tenants to follow guidelines and providing them with hints

on environmentally friendly practices

o recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Initiatives (continued)

With the implementation of various energy saving initiatives in the past few
years, the electricity consumption at ISQUARE has dropped continuously.
Taking figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 as the baseline,
the amount of electricity purchased from power company and the indirect
greenhouse gas (“GHG”") emissions generated therefrom during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 reduced by approximately 8.95% and 27.44%

respectively (details of which are shown in the table below).

BES F E /| 12,332,258 12,383,092 13,544,416
Amount of purchased electricity kWh
HEEMBENE N MEENEEREREHERE PSR S 6,289.45 6,686.87 8,668.43

Indirect GHG emissions from purchased electricity

tonnes of CO, equivalent

RE—FRIREE  BRESLSEESHAE
MNERKT L EEALEED HIRPRLE
BERTEI -

To further reduce electricity consumption, ISQUARE will continue its energy
saving programme on lighting system through the identification of locations

where more energy efficient lights could be installed.
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IRIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)

xiE Performance

EE?FA$EI£T¢$%¥&§&&>§TW A% Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
ESBFBURE AR - ﬁﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁ’jﬁﬁz,ﬂﬁ; investment holding, and iSQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the

ﬁﬁf%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂli*ﬁ”ﬁd‘ RARFEE - HEEMmEL total amount of direct GHG emissions generated by them is relatively small.

RS T2 EAEE (R IEERES) The largest contributor to the carbon footprint of the Group (including

ETHEERIR - iISQUARE) in the year under review was the indirect GHG emissions from

electricity consumption.

1. REREHN(ZALRES 1. GHG emissions' (CO, equivalent)

ERERR(FET)
Direct sources (Scope 1)1
o L2 NI 0.73 0.77

Diesel? tonnes

TR (EE1E2 )
Indlirect sources (Scope 2)!
o THJS NI 6,323.50 6,725.55

Electricity? tonnes

E TR A (FEE3)!

Other indiirect sources (Scope 3)'

o RIBRI/KMEMRHEN NI 20.51 19.54
Electricity used for processing fresh water* tonnes

o RIB)SKMEREE NS NI 10.33 9.24
Electricity used for processing sewage® tonnes

o EEFEARAREARO NI 0.39 1.20
Paper waste disposed at landfills® tonnes

RERBASINE (8E1 - 2K%3) N 6,355.46 6,756.30

Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1, 2 and 3) tonnes

BRNRERBEIER

GHG emissions avoided

o HRIREIUT N (200.59) (207.36)
Recycling of paper” tonnes
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RIS RE ) Environmental Issues (continued)
= @) Performance (Continued)
2. BERHFE 2. Energy consumption

BRI
Direct energy consumption
o S PSS 3.09 3.24

Diesel® MWh

I BEIR HFE

Indlirect energy consumption

o TP JKEL/ N 12,399.02 12,454.73
Electricity? MWh

R ERER S PSS 12,402.11 12,457.97

Total energy consumption MWh

Y HREMEBEZ fERERESE JKEL/ NS S oK 0.23 0.23

Total energy consumption per m2 of floor area MWh/m?

3. HRERIBFE 3. Paper consumption1©

o MAEME NIy 496.87 598.48
Office paper kg

o BN R NIy 393.34 381.30
Paper for printing corporate communication kg

BRENRE NI 890.21 979.78

Total paper consumption kg
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IRIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)
E3210 ) Performance (Continued)
4, FKE" 4. Water consumption'
HAKE LA 50,968.00 48,620.00
Total water consumption m3
BE A REHEE AXESE SRR R 0.96 0.92
Total water consumption per m? of floor area m3/m2
AAAREERSBEMAREREYS  MBERE As the Group is situated at ISQUARE where water is provided by the
W2 HOKTIREKEE  HAEE(BER Water Supplies Department, the Group (including iISQUARE) has not
BES)EHEEELT RS FKREER encountered any problem in sourcing water for daily operation.
AR -
5 EBYWER 5. Waste management

FERHYEIR R A Y

Non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills'2

ZENHEERNEZEZYES N 1, 799.98 TiE
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills tonnes NA
BYHARHEBZRENEERNESEEDES RME 7K 0.03 TiE
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at tonnes/m? NA

landfills per m2 of floor area

JER B

Waste collected for recycling

o HRIR NI 41,790.00 43,200.00
Paper's kg

o HHPu NIy 246.00 224.00
Plastics'# kg

o BE NI 177.00 156.00
Metals's kg

. BtHaBE e 15 i
Toners/cartridges'® pieces NA
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong” as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department and the Environmental Protection Department (“Hong Kong GHG
Guidelines”). All numbers in this table, where applicable, are rounded to two
decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned

and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation

of electricity which the Group (including iISQUARE but excluding tenants which
purchased power through their own metered supply) purchased from power

company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that (i) come from paper waste
disposed by the Group at landfills and (i) are relevant to the activities of the
Group and iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for processing
fresh water and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’ own metered
supply, by government departments.

The breakdown of the Scope 1 GHG emissions in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows: carbon dioxide (0.73 tonnes of CO,
equivalent), methane (0.0001 tonnes of CO, equivalent) and nitrous oxide
(0.0006 tonnes of CO, equivalent).

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of ISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potentials set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group (including iISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity
bills and the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity
provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including ISQUARE) as shown in water bills and the latest available
unit electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including iISQUARE) as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the Drainage
Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Performance (Continued)

Note 6: Emissions are calculated based on the amount of office paper consumed by
the Group (excluding paper generated by the management company engaged
to run iISQUARE (“MgtCo”) for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE) and the
relevant emission factor set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 7:  Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE) and the
relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 8: Energy consumption is calculated based on the amount of diesel consumed
by the emergency generator at iISQUARE and the relevant conversion factor
set out in the “List of common conversion factors (Engineering conversion
factors)” as published by IOR Energy Pty Ltd.

Note 9: Energy consumption is the amount of electricity purchased by the Group
(including iISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity bills.

Note 10: Referring to paper generated by the Group only (excluding paper generated
by the MgtCo for any purpose in relation to ISQUARE).

Note 11: Being the amount of water used by the Group (including iISQUARE) as shown

in water bills.

Note 12: Being the estimated amount of general waste disposed through iISQUARE,
including those generated by the Group. Such amount is derived based on
the average daily amount of general waste as collected and weighed by the
cleaning contractor of ISQUARE at different time slots of a designated period
multiplied by the number of days in a year. No such data is available for the
financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Note 13: Including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by external
parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.

Note 14: Being plastics disposed through iSQUARE.
Note 15: Being metals disposed through iSQUARE.

Note 16: Being toners/cartridges used by the Group. No such data is available for the
financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Due to their business nature, the Group (including iISQUARE) does not
generate a material amount of hazardous waste and disclosure of total

packaging material used for finished products is not applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the operating activities of the Group (including
iISQUARE) have no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\BEIFEEA R A T



TEHEETHRE Corporate Social Responsibilicy Report

IRIEERE @

B <1 R RERI R AR R R

RAFE - NEBEWENBEREETEMNE AR
SEAEATZEMRRFABHER IR -

HEERE

HRERESNEEEIHTERAR - BAE
EEFTEXRERERESREEEZEE A
- A ERENN REREAEE €22
ARBERESN - RETFTRMEEEMBEANE
TAINERS® 25 °

(=

MAREE ZRINERKZE EBURRE 8 T
XF o EEEREARRERNTIFRE - 22
EEBEFLIREBENEENULDBYE -

Rt AEECRMEANREEZRESH —RAL
AR - RREHBEEEHLE - R

REIRIE - DI LLBRRS - TR IR FERE - RIBST
A - B T 88T R EAR RG] IR B8 1

7]~ 2R B R8RSR G DI ANTE PR ISR AR B 2 3R 7E B
HEBWERTH - I REBEEHERRBER
B PSP RETRA - TSRS R 76

R NEE - IR EEEARHMOREF LA
FRIFIIRHMEERA © B BAN SR B 5 e i
HIEHNEBENE16EEFI8BENTEE AW
SHUFMEZES I ARENHIA - RELARE
BHEERTPERAZEEINERE R RHTERS
WIRA - RABFFHR/E TETRRTME - I
MABLAE RSB - BMBEEALME TV -

HAARFLEAEZEHARBBENEE - &
B TERE - BEIREMFBMENNEE
ARREEERTESNEERT  fIEREEMN
BTE /7 AL E R L 50S 2 JE AR BB T o

* RAGEMEETHREMERNEE ' EITBER
ARIBEERERARRERESHN —REFRMEE
EmEAMET -

Environmental Issues (continued)

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations relating to the
environment that had a significant impact on it.

Social Issues

Since the management of iISQUARE has been outsourced to the MgtCo
and there is no need for the Group to directly deal with employment-related
matters in respect of ISQUARE, discussion on areas relating to social issues
only covers the Group and does not include staff of the MgtCo employed for
general building and property management of iSQUARE.

Employment

As the Group’s success depends largely on the support of its employees*,
the management places great emphasis on maintaining a quality workplace.
Building up a culture which advocates ethical and responsible business
practices has become essential. To this end, the Group has adopted a
general code of conduct (“Code”) which applies to both Directors and
employees and deals with areas of data privacy, copyright protection,
prevention of bribery, “whistle-blowing” and equal opportunities. According
to the Code, employees are required to observe the requirements of the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance, the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance and the Race Discrimination Ordinance and
their respective codes of practice. In addition, the Group has laid down an
employment policy, setting out its principles on recruitment and promotion,
such as equal opportunities and “selection on capability” basis. Procedures
and factors to be considered on review of the remuneration packages of the
senior management are delineated in the remuneration policy. Information in
respect of the Group’s remuneration review mechanism is mentioned in the
Corporate Governance Report headed “Remuneration committee” as set out
on pages 16 to 18. To be consistent with the principles of the employment
policy on motivating employees and providing equal opportunities,
performance appraisal is conducted annually. It is the basis for salary
adjustment, discretionary bonus and promotion.

Although policies on compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest
periods, and some other benefits and welfare are not put in writing, relevant
steps to govern their application and due observance have been developed
and implemented under the management of the Executive Directors of the

Company.
* Staff/employees exclude Directors of the Company and staff employed by the

MgtCo for general building and property management of iISQUARE throughout
this Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
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Social Issues (continued)

Development and training

In order to create a supportive workplace which enables the employees to
develop their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately,
the Group provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees,
irrespective of their rankings. Given the complexity of job duties, senior
management is provided with additional funding for outside training. Other
than financial support, the Group also organises group-wide training for its

staff from time to time.

Key topics covered by the training undertaken by the employees during the

year under review included:

o compliance and regulatory updates
o health and safety issues
o relationship with stakeholders

Employee engagement
Since a good work-life balance is considered significant to the employees,
the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within office hours

and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of the Group.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared by the management so as to identify ways to make further

improvement.
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee engagement (Continued)

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. Around 77% (2017: 70%) of the respondents found either
satisfied or very satisfied with the Group as a whole whilst about 68%
(2017: 63%) was happy with the workforce-management relationship. As
at 31 March 2018, around half of the employees have been working with
the Group over a decade. The employee turnover rate for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018 was about 12.50% (2017: 6.15%) while the employee
absence rate was around 1.28% (2017: 2.08%).

Health and safety

Since the Group’s main business is property investment and investment
holding, health and safety risks posed to its employees as a result of
occupational activities are relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group is
dedicated to provide a healthy and safe working environment to its staff and

therefore has established a policy in this regard with an emphasis on:
o compliance with all applicable statutory requirements

o ensuring a continuous improvement of the health and safety level
at workplace by reviewing the operating practices and seeking

comments from employees from time to time

o adopting measures which can reduce, control and if possible,

eliminate hazards at workplace

o conveying the Group’s concerns over health and safety to the MgtCo
and requesting it to get its front-line staff and contractors familiarised

with the proper procedures required in that regard

During the year under review, the Group carried out an inspection on
occupational safety and health by referencing to the “Trade Specific
Occupational Safety & Health Inspection Checklist” published by the
Occupational Safety and Health Council with the aim to improve the working
environment. To raise safety awareness at workplace among staff, the
Group also organised a talk delivered by the Labour Department concerning

prevention of office accidents.
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Social Issues (continued)

Labour standards

While the Group does not have its own specific policy regarding child labour
or forced labour, it is a statutory requirement in Hong Kong, a place where

the Group operates, not to engage child and forced labour.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on it relating to employment, health and safety, and labour standards

as mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide.

Supply chain management

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
MgtCo, professional service providers and some other companies that
deliver services for support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation
on areas such as insurance, banking and information technology. Services
of the indirect suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering,
cleaning and security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo. Based
on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the Group’s key
suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the latter one is
particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with the indirect

suppliers.

Since suppliers are the “extension” of the Group, their behaviour shall reflect
the Group’s values. Although the Group does not maintain a separate
policy on managing environmental and social risks of its suppliers, it has
embedded the relevant concerns in its environmental policy and health and
safety policy. As the MgtCo is the key supplier which poses a significant
impact on the Group, it is provided with relevant policies of the Group in the
hope that it can convey the Group’s concerns to the indirect suppliers. The
MgtCo is also requested to integrate the Group’s values into its operation
process where practicable and economically viable. Apart from written
communication, the Group has frequent direct dialogue and regular meetings
with the MgtCo. According to the said policies, the Group also reviews
its practices from time to time so as to reduce health and safety risks at
workplace and incorporates environmental considerations into contracting

decisions where practicable.
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Social Issues (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Although more than half of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that all (2017: 100%) the respondents found partnering with the Group was

not merely mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Product/service responsibility

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team pays
visits to the shops when required so as to exchange views with the tenants
directly and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can also
contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone and
email as and when needed. As a means to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction, if
any, is properly addressed to in a timely manner, a formal complaint-handling

mechanism is in place as well.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year under review conducted a satisfaction
survey on about half of its tenants. Although the survey result showed
that there were some areas such as technical/maintenance services and
marketing the Group had to further work on, around 75% (2017: 71%) of
the respondents considered the overall performance in each of the areas
of leasing and management/security as satisfactory. Approximately three
quarters (2017: 79%) of the respondents expressed interest in renewing
tenancy with the Group whilst about 75% (2017: 71%) said they would

recommend iISQUARE to their business partners.

Other than customer satisfaction, the Group also recognises the importance
of personal data protection. Relevant concerns have been incorporated into
the Code and are communicated to the employees. According to the Code,
employees are required to safeguard the privacy and security of personal
information of the Group’s stakeholders by observing the data protection
principles of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Collected information is
accessible on a “need-to-know” basis. In view of the close relationship with
the MgtCo, the Group has also made known to it of the Group’s concerns in

this regard.
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Social Issues (continued)

Product/service responsibility (continued)

Providing a safe environment to the tenants is also a great concemn to the
Group. Although property management of iSQUARE is the job of the MgtCo,
the Group still closely monitors it by receiving updates from the MgtCo via
regular project meetings and daily report. On top of it, the project team also
patrols ISQUARE on a daily basis so as to ensure it is managed in an orderly
fashion. As for ad hoc issues, the MgtCo is required to report to the Group

promptly.

Anti-corruption

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a policy detailing situations in which acceptance of
advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention of bribery and
channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the Code. Employees
are required to undertake their adherence thereto. Besides, internal control
activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported
issues, the management will conduct investigation and handle them in the

manner set out in the Code.

To help staff stay alert to the pitfall of bribery, the Group during the year
circulated a feature article published by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption in respect of presenting and receiving gifts at festivals to

all its staff.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it relating to product responsibility and anti-corruption as

mentioned in aspects B6 and B7 of the Guide.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\BEIFEEA R A T



TEHEETHRE Corporate Social Responsibilicy Report

:I:Eniizﬁ_: ()

HE
AEEROHERESTRESHNAE BT
FHRBE  SHBERINEBH  EHRGEERXI
EIRN—RRA « RERFER - REE BB
TRER - BELRTRT  BAHSBEES N
RITH - BEBENETY  AEETEHELR
HBEFEAHSEPN AESERA] -

AEBMRGERASGH TERERES APLER
BRI E R AR E BT Ziﬁq*t IF% EEE G
YNVE Wﬁ%%lﬁﬁ’&%?ﬁiﬂmﬁﬁ’ﬂ?«ﬂ? o RE
ECR-N\F=ZA=1THUIMKFE ~&£H
LU E BB REES T IA TREHE
s AKERFEEDE

s EERE

s EFERMEERE

s REERIVIHE

Social Issues (continued)

Community

In recognition of its role in advancement of the community, the Group has
established a community policy. General principles on donation, focus areas,
and the form in which the support is delivered are clearly set out therein.
During the year under review, the Group made donations to Po Leung Kuk,
The Community Chest of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Parkinson’s Disease
Foundation and Greeners Action. To put words into actions, the Group also
mobilised its staff to take part in the “Dress Casual Day” as organised by The

Community Chest of Hong Kong.

The Group believes that going beyond corporate philanthropy by providing
venues to organisations for hosting charitable events is the best way to help
the needy as it can inspire others to follow and draw the public attention to
the needs of the underprivileged. During the financial year ended 31 March
2018, the Group offered venues at a substantially discounted rate to the

following charities:

° Changing Young Lives Foundation

. Médecins Sans Frontiéres

° MF Music & Art Promotional Association
o Society for Abandoned Animals

o UNICEF

o WWF
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) has pleasure in
submitting the annual report together with the audited financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 82 to 142.
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Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2017: HK$0.60 per share) was
paid on 5 January 2018. The Board now recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.59 per share (2017: HK$0.60 per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to the
said final dividend from Tuesday, 18 September 2018 to Thursday,
20 September 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 17 September 2018.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 2 October 2018 to
members whose names appear on the register of members on Thursday,
20 September 2018 following approval at the annual general meeting to be
held on Wednesday, 12 September 2018.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 5 September
2018 to Wednesday, 12 September 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday,
4 September 2018.

Annual Report 2017-2018 F 3§

55



56

BEEHRE Directors’ Report

EFEIRE K SR

[GES B
ARBNESREESRITNEIRE - ARER
BRE TR SRR HEE -

B AEBEEBFERNEER  BMAOHESHERE
MEER - RRISEEER  BEBBENMEREE
RSN - NREBIRSKARRROEE - REBR
EMERE TR  AEBEDIRAFEBEBHRE
R WREFBEHRMSERHIABMRE -

AEERD  BROMBAREEFFHEEER
RARBRNEER - Fit - HEZHNRESAE
REERBRELEEOFBRRADAEE 2 ERER

i

BIBEEE
HEZZ-\FZA=T—BHLVERFE &
SEZREMELER DAL EENBEE
516,400,0007C * & = — B I T 495.9% ©
ZIBREZRABRESHATREE ZHAS KA
8B RFER D

HEZZ—\F-A=+—HILHERFE - £EY
E(HEBEBFEAB%269,800,0007T @ E—BHK
FEHF 2 HEEBFFERIAAE%614,900,0007T ©
ZMEBEREYEREEESH AR F S
B mMTgHERESREENTE -

AREE 2 AR R L ) A7 #5159,300,0007T
ME—MBRFERZBRRELEEIABE
159,100,0007T °

Business Review and Commentary

Business model and strategies

The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong. The Group
generates and preserves its value through being an investor in the property

market.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$516.4 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 5.9% compared
with the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in

rental income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.

Net valuation losses on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 amounted to HK$269.8 million, compared with the net
valuation losses of HK$614.9 million for the previous financial year. The
valuation losses will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$159.3 million, compared with a loss attributable to equity shareholders

of HK$159.1 million for the previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (Continued)

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted to
approximately HK$628.8 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2018,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.4% compared with the previous
financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2018 was approximately
98.3% compared with approximately 96.8% at 31 March 2017.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2018 was HK$13,875.3 million,
compared with HK$14,148.0 million at 31 March 2017.

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement with
a bank comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million
and a 3-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating
interest rate. On 30 August 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with the bank for extension of the facilities for three years to
8 October 2019. The Company has an option to further extend the facilities
for two additional years to 8 October 2021, subject to, among other things,
the agreement of the lending bank. At 31 March 2018, the banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2017: HK$200 million) and the
Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans divided by total equity)
was 1.4% (2017: 1.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2018, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
(formerly known as DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Property Management
Limited) for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was 37
(2017: 37) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately
HK$25.5 million (2017: HK$25.2 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
. Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

o Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 99.4% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: 99.5%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

o Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
iISQUARE at 31 March 2018 was 13.4% (2017: 12.5%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)

()

Occupancy rate

Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

Quantified KPI data:

HiEx

Occupancy rate
M2018%F3H31H 2017463 H31H

BREYE Investment properties At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
B 35 iISQUARE 98.3% 96.8%
NREBHEMEEYSE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
URBEBHTEYME Industrial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%

REBR » RERBEENEST ; 2R
SR E N EREE
REB(RREPDHRS 2 BRMELBHEAE
ERSEHRRAR - TERRAE SRR
B - AREEF AR E 2 EEBENH - 5]
BN A ERETEEESBEN DU R ETRE
M MZSHRBAEEEREN D -

Environmental policy, performance and related
compliance; key relationships with stakeholders

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,

compliance with environmental-related laws and regulations as well as

key relationships with its stakeholders as required by Schedule 5 to the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the Corporate Social

Responsibility Report on pages 37 to 53 of the annual report, and such

discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control — Principal risks and uncertainties” as set out on pages
26 to 29 of the annual report, and such discussion forms part of this

Directors’ Report.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

Recent reports on the Hong Kong retail market have indicated a strong
consumer spending, reflecting favourable retail sentiments and optimistic
business environment. Nevertheless, management still expects that the
leasing market to be challenging due to the anticipated increase in new
supply of retail premises in the Tsim Sha Tsui area. Management will adopt
appropriate leasing strategies to minimise the likely impact on rental income
from iISQUARE. It is anticipated that rental income from iISQUARE and the
results from operations of the Group for the coming financial year will be

adversely affected.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Yau Allen Lee-nam (passed away on 25 July 2017)

Wong Yiu Tak (appointed with effect from 3 October 2017)
Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 95, 96 and 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Sim Lam, Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul and Mr Wong Yiu Tak shall retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of all the
Company’s subsidiaries were Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng
Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong Sim Lam.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’
notice in writing and their respective directorship shall also be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2018, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”):

VNN (@ The Company
ZEREE
Number of ordinary shares
HE BTN
BERERE
ERER BRAD #A B
BAER REER DR By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
EIBE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,078,992 0.58%
$EIBHR Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
B Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
fEpede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 - 1,831,155 0.51%
$EERS Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
e RS Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(7)(Note)
0 ARz FAY120,0008% AR EBRA R (—RH Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary

FSEAR AR ST A R HL AL B LAAR S HE AR B AR 4% )
BV B]) P78 #9120,00008 E3@AL © IRIEE S
1 - B EWAR R I E MR A AR

shares held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho
Chiu, Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures (continued)
(b) Tian Teck Land Limited

R BE
Number of shares

HE BTN
ERERE
BxnER IR 48 8
BAER KEER DR By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 590,000 — 4,625,792 0.97%
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
sE M Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
fEpe) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%
$EIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
B Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%

(7)(Note)

0 AFMERSTE115,2008 AR IAR AR (—/H
FOSAERR ST A I B F B AR S A 8 AL R4
AR FTi5 A #9115,200 8% B2 19 °

RIEE 5

T - RS ERR R PEA UL SRR AN AR RS

Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares

held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,

Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be

interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

ZERHEE
Number of ordinary shares
HEBRTH
BEREE
s RABE
B AR KEER AR RS B WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
sEmE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fikeqe) Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%
br DT EEE AN - BB R AR R E H IR0 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors and

EI2GHRERTFNERLMER - SUIRBIRLEST
AIPAE 77 AR R B R PTEH R ER - R
“EN\F=ZA=t—H ARFEF HSTK
ABREMBEA(ZENRUZER)DREHER
AR B REAREEE (AT & B EBIEXVELFTE
HEE )R - AR SEREE R EOA R

chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2018, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

HERITH
BEREERSD
ZEREE BENEDLE
Number of Percentage of total
ordinary shares issued voting shares
REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(3£1)(Note 1)
REMERR AR Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(3£1)(Note 1)
$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 711%
(72)(Note 2)
ME i Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 711%
(72)(Note 2)
G Notes:
1) B E A RDI 2336 M EF IR = AR & (1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of

MR - KRBRARMMIEEOERER B HERR
X B FEAY180,030,681 AL A HEIR

@ EEMNEEFREOEGEREBERLIHESN
25,589,715 ik 13 1B A = 7£25,589,715M AR 7 -
24,555,715 ABIB R £ F5E - 1,084,000 Al &
HEBHEBLZLTI5E -

M BT ESN  RZE-N\EFE=ZA=1—8
AN B I IR AN B (] At R PR R 5 15
5533615 A H 17 X B L M A AL 7 i () F1AEREE
R BERSKE -

the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

2) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 25,589,715
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 25,589,715 shares,
24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 1,034,000 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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BEEHEERS RHRAXKFZE  Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts
AAwE - EARISIER R TR EZ 50 No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
BAR  RAFERNEEBE L IR FHER LA Company, its parent company or controlling shareholders or any of their
FEAMEEEREFEAAAATESNEE respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
BEERNERE (ATE A B(CRFMER)E4861KFT or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
FNEE ) HEXBEREEANSZINEELS - Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
ZHER AL © or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BRI ETRBIE13.51B(1){§=238  Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
EMmIEL#EE Listing Rules

RIS EEER I MES - TIES @)
RBE—ZT-\F=A=+—HIFEZE
EWe R F-PRFELBRERES

T

o BRI A VS AAEE2,340,0000T -
# 7 % 29,000 T o fE B
2,340,000 7t # + % ¥ 2,197,000 7T
(Z=—+F : B¥2,144,00070) =&
BB EEADNR R HE BETERAE
FETMRBE LM

o EIEBMSEA 2 ENE AAE3,267,000TT -
S 7B B 202,000 T o fE B
3,267,000 7t -+ % ¥ 2,781,000 7T
(ZZT—+F : B¥2837,0007T) =
REEERANRRE DEEELE
FETNRBE LM

o MBS A 2 BE AE1,918,0000T ¢
S S 41,000 T o fE B
1,913,000 7T + & % 1,745,000 7T
(ZZE—+F : B%1,743,0007T) 2
BB EEADNRHE BEREICE
FEIMRBE O

o BEFLA Z NS AAE2,122,0007T -
S 7B B 104,000 T o fE B
2,122,000 7t -+ & ¥ 1,815,000 7T
(ZZ—+F : B%1,820,0007T) 2
BB EEADNRGHE DR E LR
FETMRBE O

o ENER/INAZ BME AEHE1,480,0007T
HANEE127,0007T ©

BEHR LAEE - ARFEX AT E A
ERBRI B 2L o
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Due to allowances for expenses actually incurred, the directors’
emoluments of the following directors for the year ended 31 March
2018 have changed when compared with those for the last financial
year:

o Mr Cheong Hooi Hong’s emoluments increased by
HK$29,000 to HK$2,340,000, of which, HK$2,197,000 (2017:
HK$2,144,000) was covered by his service contract with the
Company as chief executive officer.

o Mr Cheong Kheng Lim’s emoluments decreased by
HK$202,000 to HK$3,267,000, of which, HK$2,781,000 (2017:
HK$2,837,000) was covered by his service contract with the
Company as chief operation officer.

o Mr Cheong Keng Hooi’s emoluments decreased by
HK$41,000 to HK$1,913,000, of which, HK$1,745,000 (2017:
HK$1,743,000) was covered by his service contract with the
Company as chief project officer.

o Mr Cheong Sim Lam’s emoluments decreased by HK$104,000
to HK$2,122,000, of which, HK$1,815,000 (2017:
HK$1,820,000) was covered by his service contract with the
Company as chief investment officer.

o Miss Cheong Chong Ling’s emoluments increased by
HK$127,000 to HK$1,489,000.

Despite the above changes, the Company’s policy regarding the said
expenses has not changed.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules (continued)

o)

Given that the director's emoluments of Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam were
paid on a pro rata basis up to 25 July 2017, i.e. the date on which he
passed away, his director’'s emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2018 decreased by HK$116,000 to HK$54,000 compared with those
for the last financial year.

The director’'s emoluments of Mr Wong Yiu Tak for the year ended
31 March 2018, which were paid proportionally to his term of directorship
starting from 3 October 2017, were HK$84,000.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Management Contracts

(@)

The Company has an administrative services agreement and also
a non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite
period, with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
whereby the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company
secretarial services (under the administrative services agreement) and
office space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2017:
HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between the Company and
Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited (formerly
known as DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited)
whereby this management company is responsible for general
building and property management (except for the services relating
to tenancy) of ISQUARE. The management agreement was renewed
for a term of twelve months commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall
be automatically renewed on an annual basis thereafter, subject to
the right of termination by the Company. Manager’s remuneration of
HK$600,000 (2017: HK$600,000) was paid by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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EEE Fixed Assets

REEBRREWENT - Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

HERSEREEYE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
ih B REAR HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
RES(PREMRNVENRHAE) BB R HR

BRI IR BB N =57
(NLBEIBER 742555 )
iISQUARE (excluding an office on 9th Floor) Shopping centre Medium
63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

BT ®KNE THRIFBM AR
HNABRL - — ARG K

HRLT ~ L2~ L3N LAfZEfL

NEBETRE-AZAR

(BB AR 225%)
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

BRI E 50 F/NES =
hE

BETmBR =2 TR R

BEHEP_T—ZE_T=%

(55 1B 36655 )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 9% and 30% of the Group’s
total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted

for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their close associates or any
member of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any

interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2018 are set out in notes 20 to 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$2,824,000 (2017: HK$239,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 143 to 144 of the annual report.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 71 has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983
respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 69, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and
a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively.
He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of the Company and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

and various subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 65, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 59, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 38 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 47, joined the Company as an assistant
to directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of the
Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the

School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 82, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and holds a
degree of Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman
of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986. He was also a former
Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the

Urban Council and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.
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AEEAE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman), remuneration
committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as member) of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience
in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Wong Yiu Tak, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2017. He
currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Wong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science (Honours) from The University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Law from Peking University. He is now a
serving solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant to Messrs. S.K. Wong & Co.,

Solicitors & Notaries.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 44, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr Lee holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado
School of Mines in the United States and a MBA degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture

capital and property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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AEEABE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 41, is the accounting manager of
the Company. She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 18 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 67, joined the Company in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 38 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 61, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 48, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 82 to 142, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2017-2018 F 3§

75



BIYZEEHE Independent Auditor's Report

EIRE L ER
FREZFEERBERANFEHE - BAHAN
PG BHRERNECRAERNER - ELF
HRERMECERGFAMBHRRRLAZAR
ETREN - RMTEHELFTREHEBNE
2o

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

REYENGE

Valuation of investment properties

R A IS IRA N i 12 R @51 B MTAF1(0) °

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BRERSEE
The key audit matter

BRENERNTEEZSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

?%E%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%°E%&§%%WI%@%
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SERFEYT L o

The Group holds a portfolio of investment properties
located in Hong Kong. The principal component of the
Group’s investment properties is ISQUARE, a shopping and

entertainment complex located in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong.

IR ERBIMNE Y L ERIRR R B EARLE
B FHEREMENRAEE -

Management’s assessment of the fair value of investment

TRV

properties is based on valuations performed by an external
property valuer in accordance with recognised industry

standards.

REMEMENHED —EREREHEAZEFERBNES K
A FRIRERE R EETEENEMNR -

One of the key drivers of the valuation of investment
properties is rental income which can be volatile, particularly
in light of the current economic status of the retail industry in

Hong Kong.
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment

properties included the following:

. FHEIMNEYERERMBERE  ERYEGENERLE
FME - FTEMEANELME
assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued,

objectivity and independence;

. REinEhESEEENIMNEGHEMAE RN HIR
EMENA R EEMEEOGHERS
obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group on
which the management’s assessment of the fair value of

investment properties was based;

. BHNE A EMF A ER ARG ETFTRANEZEM
R
discussing with the external property valuer the valuation
methodology and key estimates and assumptions

adopted in the valuations;
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Egﬁ}g%*ﬁ%lﬁ(gg) Key Audit Matters (continued)

REMENGE

Valuation of investment properties
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Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BREZSEHE
The key audit matter

BMNERNAEEZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as a key audit matter because the valuation of investment
properties is inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error or

potential management bias.

EHRMONBDELBEAENRET - 2RRBANER
REMBIT @ AR S EK - FHEIMNE Y ER PR
REEERE

with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology applied
by the external property valuer with reference to the
recognised industry standards and the requirements of

the prevailing accounting standards;

FBRLLBINEMEAEMESREMEMEPHRANE
EfEET RRRE A A TSR M A BN REN TS
FTRUE - BEETARANEZ2MEFNRE (BRER
bbbk« BAITHMMSESMA LBOTISRS) REE
IR

challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuations, including capitalisation rates, prevailing
market rents and comparable market transactions, by
comparing the key estimates and assumptions used
by the external property valuer in the valuation of each
investment property with market available data and

government produced market statistics; and

ERANER L hREERES - BEHESEMINE
MEMAEMRHAAEE S REEE  URBBEGHR
Pt

comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information,
including committed rents and occupancy rates,
provided by the Group to the external property valuer

with underlying contracts and documentation.
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Information Other Than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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BIYZEEHE Independent Auditor's Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate

with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Yau Ngai Lun, Alan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2018
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meEaRkHEMEEIAR
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BE-ZE-N\E=A=+—HBILtEE(UE%F|’R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2018 2017
Fo=E Fr T
Note $°000 $000
ON Revenue 3 632,541 661,677
BRFEAL A Cost of services (84,268) (82,343)
EF Gross profit 548,273 579,334
EH A Other revenue 5 5,767 6,606
HbEsig 558 Other net loss 5 @ ©)
1T E F Administrative expenses (37,586) (36,968)
REYEEESEA Profit from operations before valuation
Ry AR & R A changes in investment properties 516,447 548,966
WAV HEEE SR Net valuation losses on investment
properties 12(a) (269,836) (614,894)
REYEGERE R Profit/(loss) from operations after
MR R R (8518) valuation changes in
investment properties 246,611 (65,928)
A AR Finance costs 6(a) (3,140) (3,374)
BREBLATER (E18) Profit/(loss) before taxation 6 243,471 (69,302)
TS Income tax 9(a) (84,153) (89,813)
INGIE 3 Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
BEERRN(FE) income for the year attributable to
EZHEWRAERE equity shareholders of the Company 159,318 (159,115)
BREF (FHE) Earnings/(loss) per share
— EXREE — basic and diluted 11 $0.44 $(0.44)

FE88H EF 1428 WM B A S MTA — 5 © The notes on pages 88 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
FES A A AR SR AR B IR IB 5 A I E10 © Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set

out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R=ZZB-—NE=ZA=+—HB(LB%%I’R) At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2018 2017
Bo=E T Tt
Note $°000 $’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets 12(a)
— REE — Investment properties 13,764,720 14,031,470
— HMWE  BENMERE — Other properties, plant and equipment 67,837 71,966
13,832,557 14,103,436
REBEE Current assets
FEUERFR ~ 5l RRFE K Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 14 18,027 21,632
BEMRITIFRK Pledged bank deposits 15 10,295 134,981
BHERBSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 16(a) 519,247 385,602
547,569 542,115
REEE Current liabilities
HEN R R IERTE A Other payables and accruals 17 21,125 16,719
B Deposits received 18 195,748 195,213
RERS & & Provision for long service payments 19 1,485 1,513
b T & A Obligations under finance leases 21 29 29
NEAFES P 1SHR Current tax payable 9(c) 14,541 19,849
232,928 233,323
REBEEFE Net current assets 314,641 308,792
EEABERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 14,147,198 14,412,228
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
RITER — BiKiE Bank loan — secured 20 200,000 200,000
JE (BT (B Government lease premiums payable 22 1,857 1,920
BhE S AE Obligations under finance leases 21 17 46
BB IAE (& Deferred tax liabilties 9(d) 70,042 62,298
271,916 264,264
BEEFE NET ASSETS 13,875,282 14,147,964

Annual Report 2017-2018 &3}



HEBEMRRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R=ZZB-—NF=A=+—H(UBE%IR) At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2018 2017
Fo=E Fr T
Note $000 $'000

BARR #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
&N Share capital 23(b) 360,000 360,000
A Reserves 13,515,282 13,787,964
RSB TOTAL EQUITY 13,875,282 14,147,964

FEeN —E— \FENA-+HRZEWFA Y o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2018.

2 =t Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE SEI@AK Director Director

FBBEEF142BMNEBAMEHREN—3H © The notes on pages 88 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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mEERBHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE-—-N\E=A=+—BILEE(UE%F|’R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NEEERRERN
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
R ] REBER ERAE
Share  Revaluation Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
FisE T T T T
Note $°000 $000 $'000 $000
R2016F4 A1 H AR Balance at 1 April 2016 360,000 1,778,150 12,600,929 14,739,079
TEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
AEEEEREZEWALLZE  Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year — — (159,115) (159,115)
B E—BTEEE#ERARE  Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) — — (216,000) (216,000)
BAATHEETRMMLE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) — — (216,000) (216,000)
R2017F3A31H R Balance at 31 March 2017 and
20174 A1 A& 1 April 2017 360,000 1,778,150 12,009,814 14,147,964
AEEEGEE ! Changes in equity for the year:
REZHN R 2EWALEE  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - 159,318 159,318
B E—BTEEE#ERAR S Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) - - (216,000) (216,000)
BAATHEETIRMILE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) - - (216,000) (216,000)
201853 A 31 A AY4AER Balance at 31 March 2018 360,000 1,778,150 11,737,132 13,875,282

s

)

88AEF 142 AN EB AR ERMERN —7BD -

The notes on pages 88 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-ZE-N\E=A=+—HBILtEE(UE%F|’R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

86

2018 2017
Pt = Fr T
Note $°000 $'000
RETEE Operating activities
BRI AT R, (E518) Profit/(loss) before taxation 243,471 (69,302)
FEIER Adjustments for:
— FMEWA — Interest income (4,039) (3,808)
— BB — Finance costs 3,140 3,374
— e — Depreciation 4,637 6,993
— REMEMHEERFRE — Net valuation losses on investment
properties 269,836 614,894
— REREEEEEFRHE — Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 6 7
EEESEEALEEF Operating profit before changes in
working capital 517,051 552,160
JEUBRTN » 5] & RFAfTE Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable,
S (3hn) deposits and prepayments 3,557 819)
EfENAR R ERTE A Increase/(decrease) in other payables
#h0,/Cd) and accruals 4,456 (3,379)
BUET &, G ) Increase/(decrease) in deposits received 535 (9,094)
RERE S EHRLD Decrease in provision for long service
payments (28) (68)
KEERABNRSE Cash generated from operations 525,571 538,800
[EANE R Tax paid
— BEBHER — Hong Kong profits tax paid (81,717 (85,475)
e EBIENRESFE Net cash generated from
operating activities 443,854 453,325
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FEHELHRER Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows
BE-_Z—N\F=A=1+—HBLFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2018 2017
Bt = Fr T
Note $°000 $'000
RETEE Investing activities
EUFIE Interest received 3,987 3,673
BABTEEEMNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets
(T BEFREDS) other than investment properties (516) (559)
BB MR Payment for expenditure on investment
properties (3,086) (584)
BEEEEEMSHIEA Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 2 =
EEMRITEROR L Decrease in pledged bank deposits 124,686 26,810
RETEBEBHNRESFE Net cash generated from
investing activities 125,073 29,340
RS SEE Financing activities
ENEERERESHEARTD Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ~ 16(b) (29) (29)
SN BAFHE Payment for government lease
premiums payable 16(b) (60) (57)
B BUTHEFE Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable 16(b) (99) (102)
B SRITERFE Interest paid on bank loan 16(b) (2,845) (2,1583)
B E M &R AR Other borrowing costs paid 16(b) (249) 972)
EXIARE Dividends paid (432,000) (432,000)
REFBFTANREFE Net cash used in financing activities (435,282) (435,313)
RERRESEEYRMFEE  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 133,645 47 352
72017/20165F481 81K Cash and cash equivalents
RERREEEN at 1 April 2017/2016 385,602 338,250
A3HE3TEWERE Cash and cash equivalents
RELZEEY at 31 March 16(a) 519,247 385,602

F8B8EEF 42BN EBAMISHREN —3 5

The notes on pages 88 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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1

_:ER = n-I_IBz 1

(f)

HEEE
IMRAEEE-—BALHE(BRE-AR
ZH— FRIIR 5 ) HEE R i E
NEE R L EEENERE
BN — R Z B MK AIERTHE
BERHEE —JHHEE - BERZIN
HRBLRHENBEEMEFARE - M
TEERTHER W MEEREET
e

) ATEEEHEEENDE
HRAEBENEAERAENE
= MRBEEREENBAR
HoRERMEHZERERE
B BENEEERESBERMN
@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?m%ﬁEKW
(EFTE R B R #B 0 L A (=]
ﬁ%&§$$§'%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EHE BTIIBERER

—  EEmAERaREHMD
FEEFEIREYETESR
MY - SRBEEYHE
%%ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%¥°
MRS R EWE
A%Ei@@ﬁu@ﬁﬁ
ER:A (2BME1d) —
B R

—  MEEHEEREER - 1
A HERBR K E
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi%@%
IR AR EBED HATED
T RRARERERE
FRAARR  BIF U AR
HEHEFANEEDR
Sho Bt s - HEMNFH
IR EREARE T RG]
YHHER - SERIABEA
BEUGREE o

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ 5B FE JEA R A 7

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40
years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of accounts and other receivables
Accounts and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

= For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)()
and (ii)).

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

K)

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

102 Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB EEH R D =

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(P)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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B3R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

(s)

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ 5B FE JEA R A 7

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the

following amendments are relevant to the Group:

— Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure

initiative

— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of

deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. However, additional disclosure has
been included in note 16(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by Amendments to HKAS 7 which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including

both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not include
any customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2017, the Group includes only one customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue and

revenue from this customer amounted to approximately $77,251,000.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 DEER 4  Segment Information
AEERBEE—ARESE A MEME The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property.
Bl At EE—BAREDIBOESDS leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole
BRI S E TR - reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.
ERAEEYEHRENKAMEELDRES No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s
B R EERWERT 27 o revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong.
5 HtWAKEEFE 5 Other Revenue and Net Loss
2018 2017
Fx Tt
$'000 $'000
Hiug A Other revenue
A BUTA Interest income 4,039 3,806
HerE R N m I ERH B 3R B A Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
IRATR IFTR S FTERSREE Compensation from early termination of lease 273 1,005
Hh Others 255 595
5,767 6,606
Hith 51835 Other net loss
SNESE H, (B518) RS 5E Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ) 1
B EEEEBEFE Net loss on disposals of fixed assets (6) )
) ©6)
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BRBLATER (E18)

BEATRS, (BIR)EHRGEA) :

% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2018 2017
T T
$°000 $'000
(@ ®ERAK (@) Finance costs
RITERA B Interest on bank loan 2,793 2,304
E A fE SR A Other borrowing costs 250 970
FET R T H(E R 2, Interest on government lease premiums
payable 97 100
3,140 3,374
(b) BIMKZE (b)  Staff costs
¥ TERHMERN Salaries, wages and other benefits 42,127 41,911
R ERFERIRET B R Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,169 1,201
43,296 43,112
(c) EHtEB ()  Otheritems
REWMENHS A Gross rental income from investment
PRk properties (632,541) (661,677)
B BEEE Less: Direct outgoings 84,268 82,343
(548,273) (579,334)
Z AT & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZHARS — audit services 798 739
— BRI — tax services 61 56
— H AR — other services 196 182
e Depreciation 4,637 6,993

Annual Report 2017-2018 &3}



% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMe 7 Directors’ Emoluments
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) g M A &) (# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
TEEFSEE)IBHYFE 220 5| 3R 5= = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
F 2 A= 3: 1) BIRETE 2018
EEHE REYAZ BETEA R wE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Fr Frx
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
HITES Executive Directors
R Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,590 700 - 2,340
IR Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,517* 700 - 3,267
SE /M Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,563 300 - 1,913
fzipodes] Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,772 300 - 2,122
B Cheong Chong Ling 50 1,298 120 21 1,489
FEHITES Non-executive Director
Y ziclic] Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - — 430
BT Independent Non-executive
2 Directors
BEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
hZ5 Yau Allen Lee-nam

(M=—Z—+4% (passed away on
tA=+HA 25 July 2017)

Bitt) 54 - - - 54
== Wong Yiu Tak
(M=—Z—+% (appointed with effect from
+H=BLEfE) 3 October 2017) 84 - — - 84
=3VN Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
778 9,120 2,120 21 12,039
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEME @
TRIEE (A FEDI B 383(1) K B A 7 (3
BEEF AR 3001)E 2585 R 1 = B

0T : (&)

7 Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows: (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

e - FERL RINETE 2017
BE=Me REDIR BIEAEAL HR P
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Tt T Tt T+t Tt
$'000 $’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
ErEiE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,561 700 — 2,311
SEIBHN Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,719 700 — 3,469
s Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,604 300 = 1,954
i pode] Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,876 300 — 2,226
SEIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 50 1,171 120 21 1,362
FHITEE Non-executive Director
VAR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — — 430
BT Independent Non-executive
= Directors
FEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 — — — 170
=5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 — — — 170
=N Lee Chung 170 — = = 170
810 9,311 2,120 21 12,262
* EHRETEEMEBM T ERBEEME & The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential

H 1 F| - fHErfEE S £ 4 A 3,150,000 T
—Z— 4 :2,898,0007T) °

properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
value of approximately $3,150,000 (2017: $2,898,000).
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EeMEAL

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

—EHERE- \FEERUESNE The five highest paid individuals for 2017 and 2018 are all directors of
MATHAERNRTNES @ HBSEEHN the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.
MIEET o

9 FIBEH

9 Income Tax

(@ #HZEBEEREMEEEAR (@) Taxation in the consolidated statement

FRREIPRISBIIES

of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

2018 2017
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
ARHFIIE — BEFEHR Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
INEE R IE A Provision for the year 76,449 82,379
A FEEERT Over-provision in respect of prior years (40) 72)
76,409 82,307
EEHIE Deferred tax
i = R EE A AN ) Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,744 7,506
84,153 89,813
BEANSERERSRAFE NG The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
FERT R & A A 16.5% (=T —tF (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

16.5% ) TR RET & o
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FriER @) 9 Income Tax (continued)
(b) PTEH X HMizEAFRES (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
BHEthad (FHiE) R accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax
rate:

2018 2017
5 T
$'000 $'000
BRE AT A, (E51E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 243,471 (69,302)

121816.5%(20174F : 16.5%) Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation,

BOF ST E R AT calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
wml (B MEERE 40,173 (11,434)
DA H BT T s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 48,657 101,718
BET RN SR FTE R 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,637) (399)
EFEEERT Over-provision in prior years (40) 72)
HEERIE Actual tax expense 84,153 89,813
(c) #ZE MR K RAAH (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
EHA statement of financial position represents:
2018 2017
T T
$000 $'000
REEBEFISTHER Provision for Hong Kong profits tax

for the year 76,449 82,379
BT S Provisional profits tax paid (61,908) (62,530)
NEAFES PSR Current tax payable 14,541 19,849
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FriER @) 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELHRIEAE : (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
B4R G ISR R R A IR E T 18 The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
BEMNHAEKID MAEZLEHUT : consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BEHEETE
MIFERBE
Depreciation
allowances

in excess of
the related

depreciation

o
$°000

RE NHIFEAELESE Deferred tax arising from:
R2016%F4H1H At 1 April 2016 54,792
Bz kR Charged to profit or loss 7,506
R201793A31H At 31 March 2017 62,298
M2017F4HA1H At 1 April 2017 62,298
R HIER Charged to profit or loss 7,744
201843 HA31H At 31 March 2018 70,042
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BEHEMTE Notes to the Financial Staterments
(LA ¥ % 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 RE

11

(@ AFEERFNRAAEZKRRER

/BN

10 Dividends

(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

2018 2017
Fr Tz
$000 $000
BEEIREZAFHRE Interim dividend declared and paid of
F%0.607T $0.60 per share
(20174 : ®H%0.607T) (2017: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000
R E BRI E B R 2R Final dividend proposed after the end of
DIRAHAIR EFRX0.597T  the reporting period of $0.59 per share
(20174 : §h%0.607T) (2017: $0.60 per share) 212,400 216,000
428,400 432,000

RS BRER 4 B R EHE D KA AR
RERAEREHRRERERRE

==
8

.

o

b) BRE—BBREERML AT
BERE  TRAEEHE
B ATHR S

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2018 2017
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
BR E—MEFE - ¥R Final dividend in respect of the previous
REFHERTHE financial year, approved and paid during
REAR% B & 4%0.607T the year, of $0.60 per share
(20174 : &%0.607T) (2017: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000

BREF,(BE) — EXK
s

BRERET(ER) RERBREEN
A 42 225 A% B 11 348 159,318,000 7T ( = &
—+F : E518159,115,00070 ) KB %17
R 3 38 A% 360,000,000 % (= ZF — £ F
360,000,0000%) 518 - —ET—+F R =T
— \F WA ETE AT E LA -

g

|
A

11 Earnings/(Loss) Per Share — Basic and
Diluted
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $159,318,000
(2017: aloss of $159,115,000) and 360,000,000 (2017: 360,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year. There were no potential

dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2017 and 2018.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE 12 Fixed Assets
(@) (@)
REME Ht¥¥  BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FER
BEYE Hit# s HitgE et mE
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T i 7 i
$'000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
RADEE : Cost or valuation:
R2017F4 818 At April 2017 14,031,470 100,464 34,453 134,917 14,166,387
2 Additions 3,086 - 516 516 3,602
RE Disposals - - (67) (67) (67)
AREEREE Fair value adjustments (269,836) - - - (269,836)
7201843 H31H At 31 March 2018 13,764,720 100,464 34,902 135,366 13,900,086
& Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 34,902 135,366 135,366
&8 —2018%F  Valuation — 2018 13,764,720 - - — 13,764,720
13,764,720 100,464 34,902 135,366 13,900,086
23HIE . Accumulated depreciation:
R2017F4A18 At 1 April 2017 - 30,972 31,979 62,951 62,951
NEFHE Charge for the year - 3,444 1,193 4,637 4,637
B B B[] Written back on disposals - - (59) (59) (59)
M201843A31H At 31 March 2018 - 34,416 33,113 67,529 67,529
RREVRE Net book value:
201843 H31H At 31 March 2018 13,764,720 66,048 1,789 67,837 13,832,557
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BIEEE@m

(@)

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(%) (@) (continued)
REWE Hi% - BEREE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FEXR
EEYE Hids Hi gz e+ e
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
AT EE : Cost or valuation:
R20165F4H1H At 1 April 2016 14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
HE Additions 584 - 559 559 1,143
AN Cost adjustment (450) - — — (450)
BE Disposals — — (298) (298) (298)
AR EEAE Fair value adjustments (614,894) - — — (614,894)
R20174E3A31H At 31 March 2017 14,031,470 100,464 34,453 134,917 14,166,387
- Representing:
PR Cost - 100,464 34,453 134,917 134,917
ffifE —2017%F  Valuation — 2017 14,031,470 - - — 14,031,470
14,031,470 100,464 34,453 134,917 14,166,387
25HE . Accumulated depreciation:
R20165F4H1H At 1 April 2016 - 27,528 28,721 56,249 56,249
AEEHE Charge for the year = 3,444 3,549 6,993 6,993
BREKRERD Written back on disposals - - 291) (291) (291)
M201743H31H At 31 March 2017 - 30,972 31,979 62,951 62,951
REFE Net book value:
M201743H31H At 31 March 2017 14,031,470 69,492 2,474 71,966 14,103,436
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BlEEE®m
(b) BREMENAAEBEZ

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

RZZBE—N\F=A=+—8  &EDY At 31 March 2018, investment properties comprise ISQUARE
¥XBREEBRES (TEEMLRNER (excluding an office on 9th Floor), certain units of Good Luck
PWANE) 18 I%KEE’\]%F%{E Industrial Building and a floor of Euro Trade Centre. Other
LKEEBSHROH—E - B properties comprise an office on 9th Floor of iISQUARE, certain
R BB KB RR J%%ﬁﬁ% E0FE/N units of an industrial property, and two residential properties in
= —BIERNEMETEMN - KW Hong Kong.
EB{EEE -
() 2BREEER ()  Fair value hierarchy
%% | N & B R 3R & BA 4% The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
EHRKEEEEMGTENER investment properties measured at the end of the

ﬁ%% nBE - ZEWEE

AB(ERHBHRELER)
%137ﬂ REEFE IFAFRER
“EARBEER AEES
RATHETEMERANEA
ENABREEEMERME - {1t
i & E A R EETE2EME
WAIEREAR -

reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— FERME: RERS -

Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only

—ERwmAEEIETE
BRERTSZARREE
HBENRERAERE)
REtEAAEE

— BERME: £RFE=

BRwmABBIRES—
BRMAEBEREAER)
W ARBEER A B A E) T AT #7
R AEBRAEBERAAE
B - TABEBAERE
RERTS IR 8 AR

— FZEAMAE: RAEX

KRB R AEREGT=E

~REE

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ 5B FE JEA R A 7

Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs



% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Fixed Assets continued)
Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

12 BIEEE@m 12
(b) REVENDAABETEZ @ (b)
) 2RREEEBRE) ()

AREBENEZIARARBEFE
MREMERBEE —ERER
F_BRMGE WBREEE=
BRMGENREDEINIT

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

None of the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level 2
valuations. The investment properties which are
categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:

2018 2017
F Tt
$°000 $'000
BREEEEMTTEN Recurring fair value measurement
AREE
WEREE=BRMEMELN  Investment properties categorised into
BB Level 3 valuations:
— R E B — Commercial properties in Hong Kong 13,710,700 13,981,390
— R BEBRITEDE — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 54,020 50,080
13,764,720 14,031,470

REBEEZT-—N\EFR=T—+
F=A=+—HLFE EE
—EBREE R HIWE L
RER - MRE=ERINEE
ASKEH o ANEEAHE S
AREBEEERCHERERH
R B AR 4 B FER A RS o

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BlEEE @)
(b) REVENDAABETEZ @)

(i)

(i)

HERER

R=_E—N\E=ZA=+—8
MR BANREYSERH—HE
B HEMER — BISHTEE
FEEMARAR(HEEIHRA
HEEBAEMB2TE RS
Bi% - BUWEBZMERE
B R FTEE R AT HAMERE 2
KEER)ETTELS - EHTILAER]
MEZTERER - EEED
HA{hERD 5 R 2 - (B A B A &8
EkE RETHENBRRNE

AEBRBUREEREE - B
MERFESBAEAR L - I
ZRIMELAXRNEREH
HEmERENRESBANE
RN NBEREDENR
REE -EANTHERGHA

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued
at 31 March 2018 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BEYIEHAT below:
B ENEE HRENEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
RENE Investment properties 2018 2017 2018 2017
[INEBNEENE  Commerdial properties in Hong Kong 2.29% —500%  2.80%—500%  98.3% —100%  96.8% — 100%
MREBHIENE  Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% 4,00% 100% 100%

REMENAABEFERN
MHERIELL B R - BEE RS
HE AR LR

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ 5B FE JEA R A 7

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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12 EEEE @)

(b)

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

?Q’éﬂ%%ﬁ\ AREBETEZ @) (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
(i) SERARBEEFENE (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
#HE) (Continued)
KNEENE=EBHRAREBEBELE The movements during the year in the balance of these
BREC Q@JQDT : Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:
NREEH REER
[SEL/E S TERY=
Commercial Industrial
properties in properties in
Hong Kong Hong Kong
T T
$°000 $000
R2016F4A1H At 1 April 2016 14,597,790 48,440
7E Additions 584 —
AN Cost adjustment (450) _
N BERE Fair value adjustments (616,534) 1,640
201743 H31H At 31 March 2017 13,981,390 50,080
R2017F4H1H At 1 April 2017 13,981,390 50,080
BE Additions 3,086 -
DR EERHE Fair value adjustments (273,776) 3,940
20183 H31H At 31 March 2018 13,710,700 54,020

BREMEN AL BEAERER
AHEmLEMEEEARIR
é#@%fﬁ@ﬁiﬁ@ FER AR PR
R o REERNER ST HERH
PAMEZSHREAEER
BREPRREERANYE -
ZHEEHREPEAEEE
SR EREMKER - Mg
HERGREBEKNTE

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation losses on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. All the valuation changes recognised in profit or
loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end
of the reporting period. The valuation changes will only
affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow

of the Group.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BlEEE®m
(c) YHEREZFEMNONUT :

()

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

2018 2017
Fr T
$°000 $°000

BB In Hong Kong
— RS — Long leases 143,259 118,680
— RHHE — Medium-term leases 13,687,509 13,982,282
13,830,768 14,100,962

(d) HuEEEEM ®E
$0

&R

(e) MBEHMKED  XEBURE
Gzl hﬁﬁ’]#ﬂ AEREEMFESR
46,00070(=Z—+t4F : 75,0007T) °

() AEELELESHAEREME &
LUAEZNAMMEE TS YA
BRESEDHAKRES  ERME

GHEAEFREE  BE_FT—/\F
ZA=t - HLEFERBGRPERR

W A # =% A 7 £ A& 10,097,000 7T
(ZZ—+% : 7,915,0007T) °

NEEMERBEEEMTEANE

Txé%%m%é’ﬁﬁﬁ%% Benia
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Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $46,000

(2017: $75,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2018

were $10,097,000 (2017: $7,915,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.



% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=P . i .
12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
fH @ (f)  (continued)
AEBBETAI BB EHEEER The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
BERNSERENFBESNT operating leases are receivables as follows:
2018 2017
Fr T
$°000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 439,046 467,077
1618 B5F K After 1 year but within 5 years 370,089 318,630
5% After 5 years 259,132 =
1,068,267 785,707
PO
(9 EEEH (@) Pledge of assets
RS HERER - RITERR AR At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
18 413,633,161,0007L(=F —+ value of $13,633,161,000 (2017: $13,931,765,000) were
% 1 13,931,765,0007T ) ¥ Bl & & & pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).
TEREA (2EMIFE20) -
13 MIEAE 13 Subsidiaries
TRIEAREBAEIHBARFS - REE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
AERAESN - PR AR R E B o Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
MR K BRTRAR HAARFEH
AEER Fd-$iuk BRAFE R £ ] TEER
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation Particulars of issued and interest held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital the Company Principal activity
Associated International Resorts Limited &b 207T7 ARk Ak 100% ER
Hong Kong $20 divided into 2 shares Inactive
HERRRF BE 200,0007T5A200,0008% 17 100% NERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong $200,000 divided into 200,000 shares Property investment
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14 FEWRERF ~ T RFENARK 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments

2018 2017

Frx T

$°000 $'000

FEWERTR Accounts receivable 12,213 12,817

B RBRER Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

(FFEE14(0)) (note 14(b)) (1,575) (1,575)

10,638 11,242

HIEISSEE Deposits and prepayments 7,389 10,290

18,027 21,532

(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis

RBEHERLER - BEERKE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
A REMNRARNEWKERR(E for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
R REBRER) MR DITAOT receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
Fr Tt
$°000 $’000
181 EA Current 9,113 9,257
BHAA A E A Less than 1 month past due 1,226 1,190
#EA1 = 3{E B 1 to 3 months past due 282 779
#61 BA R 1B 3 (E A More than 3 months but less than
BOR121E A 12 months past due 13 16
B HAR A1 21 A More than 12 months past due 4 —
B e RE Amounts past due 1,525 1,985
10,638 11,242
RRA—BESRAEREE  EXER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
H—REBTRE+IEX BB 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
B - AEBEEBERHMEFEIE charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
KT EE24() ° in note 24(a).
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(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FEWERRR ~ 5T RFEN R @) 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(b) FEWERFURIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
REF A RERS EEERENOT - The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
Fr T
$°000 $'000
72017/20165%4 A1H At 1 April 2017/2016
122018/201743HA31H and 31 March 2018/2017 1,575 1,575
R=ZF—NF=A=+—80 " E At 31 March 2018, the accounts receivable of $1,575,000
I BR 3R B 4 (R Bl ) B & R E R (2017: $1,575,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
BR X A1,575,0000 ( Z T — 4 : Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
1,575,0007T) ° At © EHFEERHR $1,575,000 (2017: $1,575,000) was recognised.
BRI A 1,675,000 T (=&
—+4F : 1,575,0007T) °
() RERENERIRK (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
£ Bl Sk B BB AR )R B RUE BY FE U AR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
KEBREC DTN individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
2018 2017
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
R Esk2 HRE Neither past due nor impaired 9,113 9,257
E R DR (R A Less than 1 month past due 1,226 1,190
EEA1 =31 B 1 to 3 months past due 282 779
1 ERER A B(E A More than 3 months but less than
BLR121E A 12 months past due 13 16
260 BRR 8 121 A More than 12 months past due 4 =
1,525 1,985
10,638 11,242
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

14 FEUWERF ~ FI & RFEN K@) 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(©) LB Y FE IR RR X () (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
(Continued)
AR B R A R E A B UG BR Rk A Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
R B RN EREEE RS - wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
EAMERERENERRRAEZER Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
EAREEE R B RN —FRB L number of independent customers that have a good track
BFE - BEEERE  BIENATLR record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
ERNEEEXTESANE  MARH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
ERANEAR AR 28k E] - FTLAEEE of these balances as there has not been a significant change
UL ET R B - in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
15 2IEHIRITER 15 Pledged Bank Deposits
1\5’\\_ —N\ERZZE—+F=A=+—H " At 31 March 2018 and 2017, bank deposits were pledged to a
TTERE BIEER - DUER—RIEERIT designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).
E’]ﬁEﬂE X (2B 3E20) ©
16 RERREEEY 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(@) IE@&IE@%E#@@}E : (@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
2018 2017
T Tz
$°000 $'000
RITIE TR Deposits with banks 492,358 359,184
RIOTERERE Cash at bank and in hand 26,889 26,418
519,247 385,602
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16 WERBEEEY @)

(b)

METHELENABE Y
Mg

TRFFAEMBEEDHHELNE
EED AFEFERLRERSE
B MEEHFELNABIEZAR
MRS R E DA KRR SR E ISR
PERGARSHERNBEED

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

A o

financing activities.

BITEXR g FEfS
—FER HERE BFH#E FEAFIE, ok
Government
Obligations lease
Bank loan  under finance premiums Interest
— secured leases payable payables Total
T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(K33E20) GEAY (MzE22)
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
R2017F4A1H At 1 April 2017 200,000 75 1,980 289 202,344
MEHLRELF:  Changes from financing
cash flows:
ENREABRERSH  Capital element of finance
BARED lease rentals paid - (29) - - (29)
SR BAFHE Payment for government
lease premiums payable - - (60) - (60)
BB ER S Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable - - - (99) (99)
BEMRITERFIS Interest paid on bank loan - - - (2,845) (2,845)
ENEMEFKHEA  Other borrowing costs paid - - - (249) (249)
RERSHEE Total changes from
kL] financing cash flows - (29) (60) (3,193) (3,282
Hin 25 Other changes:
PITEFHE Interest on bank loan - - - 2,793 2,793
Hip A Other borrowing costs - - - 250 250
MBS ERE Interest on government
lease premiums payable - - - 97 97
Hih & Total other changes - - - 3,140 3,140
R2018%3A31H At 31 March 2018 200,000 46 1,920 236 202,202
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17

18

19

Ht TR FESTE A
B R 3k B AT — R
fi o

2WET £

Br T 104,944,000 T ( = & — £ F :
120,204,0007T) K& @ B R BB —F1&
BN - FTBEBWET 2 BET R —FRET ©

17

18

Other Payables and Accruals

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

within one year.

Deposits Received
All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
except for $104,944,000 (2017: $120,204,000) which is expected to

be settled after more than one year.

REIRE & &M 19 Provision for Long Service Payments
Fr
$000
R20175E4 818 At 1 April 2017 1,513
RN RE B A Provision written back for the year (32)
F AR Refunded during the year 4
R20183H31H At 31 March 2018 1,485

REEE(RBIRDD) - AEBARR LR
FFSIA LN B TRBRAGRE - ERLER
TWAEL—EMNK - BNERRABET
RENF S MREFR - RS AEE R
SRl ASBERANRRERTE - K&
BR A TR A B EE AEARBRERE
B e
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Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.



% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20

RITER — HiEH
R-E—\F=A=+—8  BIRKNE
BT

20 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2018, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

2018 2017

T Tt

$000 $000

1B E2FRN After 1 year but within 2 years 200,000 —

2F1BIB5F R After 2 years but within 5 years - 200,000

200,000 200,000
RZZ—=F+HtH ' ~AFHEH—[ER On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement
17813 T — 19 & ££300,000,000 7t A9 gl & with a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. On 30 August
e RZZE—X"FENA=+H  KAQ7F] 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with the
BIRZER1TRI M. — D i - KRB R bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019.
ER=FFZ_F—NF+HA/\H ° ZR1T The banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a
MERA—MBEAETEEEZE(ZXHEHK first fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(g)) and
12(9)) ME —EE/AE MG ME THRITF a first floating charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At

F (2B E15) K E —Z B IR M EHE
B - RZT—\FE=A=+—H  KHE
BRI TE X 5200,000,0007T( = F—+ 4 -
200,000,0007T) °

RATMRITREBEBITRARATNE T
SR B ISAR S 3R e 2R G B Y 225614 77 REER
R /AR ERNE —E B E AR o fli R
NRAERZERS:  AARBAANRKER
Ehmmmﬁﬁo$“a %%%ETE
Feaken N \FR-T—LtF
—A=1+—H" A2 TIEL&EHEhH

31 March 2018, the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2017:
$200,000,000).

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the Company were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Company regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As
at 31 March 2018 and 2017, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.
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21 mhERERIE 21 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-—ZTE—N\EFE=ZA=+—H ' AEEHHE At 31 March 2018, the Group had obligations under finance leases
ERENSHENT repayable as follows:

2018 2017

BREHE REHEE =EHEE RIEHE
NRERE (RELRE  ERE (3R

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr T T Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000
1R Within 1 year 29 29 29 29
1F&IB2FA After 1 year but within 2 years 17 17 29 29
2F K ESFN After 2 years but within 5 years - - 17 17
17 17 46 46
46 46 75 75
B BEFME X EH Less: Total future interest expense - —
HERENRE Present value of lease obligations 46 75
22 BEEUFHE 22 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZE—N\F=A=+—H ' ENEfFHE At 31 March 2018, the government lease premiums payable was
RERHALAT - repayable as follows:
2018 2017
Fr T
$°000 $'000
1F A (R IEEEMER K Within 1 year (amount included in
RIEFTERR) other payables and accruals) 63 60
16F1&B2F R After 1 year but within 2 years 66 63
2F1RIESFA After 2 years but within 5 years 218 208
55 1% After 5 years 1,573 1,649
1,857 1,920
1,920 1,980
FESTERAT HUE T Bt R (BB SRR LA E B Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
MEEE(ZF—LF 5E)atH - fixed rate of 5% (2017: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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23 BN f#fE
AR D EE (@)
AL A e S AR B R
UEEESTEE I ot
HRBDE - ARARENETFER

(a)

23 Capital and Reserves

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

185114 2 485K 2B 5 B Bh F 1B 51 E R the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
VNN The Company
&N Efff#E RER A B
Share Revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
T T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
A20165F481H Balance at 1 April 2016
MR 360,000 1,761,266 12,512,455 14,633,721
KEEEER Loss and total comprehensive
2HE U ALEEE income for the year — — (161,750) (161,750)
B F—BfkeEE  Dividends approved in respect of
HEE BIR% B, the previous financial year _ _ (216,000) (216,000)
BRANBRERE Dividends declared in respect of
=IRAIAR S the current financial year _ _ (216,000) (216,000
20173831 H Balance at 31 March 2017
%2017F481H and 1 April 2017
iofe0S 360,000 1,761,266 11,918,705 14,039,971
NEE RN Profit and total comprehensive
2HEMA LT income for the year - - 131,690 131,690
BER F—BfkeEE  Dividends approved in respect of
RIS B the previous financial year — — (216,000) (216,000)
BRI RERE Dividends declared in respect of
=R IR B the current financial year - — (216,000) (216,000)
A2018FE3H31H Balance at 31 March 2018
HIAEER 360,000 1,761,266 11,618,395 13,739,661
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23 EAXRKF#HE@

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) BRZA (b) Share capital
2018 2017
BRHEA Fr e e= FT
Number of shares $°000 Number of shares $'000
BITRHE :  Issued and fully paid:

TR Ordinary shares 360,000,000 360,000 360,000,000 360,000
RIBEBBCABEDINFE1351F - AR In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
AR E AR I A E(E - Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company have no

LR E ABRBERTR SRR
B WA EARBIAE LEFAE—
ARAR D 1&—ZE - AR RKFIHRE
E - BT BRI =R RS

(c) BfRHEENLENME
B {1 R 1 DA 6 FE B R 0
MESHERBREMNESHRS -
REECERARBES - RAERE

ERBEYEE - EAEBENELAR
CHEMBEBARBEN o LLiFHE
RN D IRA] ©
d) AIHtDIREE

R=F—NF=A=+—8  RE
EBCRENED B 6B R E s EH A
TR T AR ERRRAFEERLE
#1,805,233,000 7 (=& — 4 :
1,810,707,0007T) ~ EE SR HA

i%?%Elfé BEIRARHRESR
0.597t (= —+4 : §%0.607T) -
A 212,400, ooom_ E—tF
216,000,0007t ) (FE10)  3ELEAR S
PG HFRE R RARERAAE -
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nominal value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,805,233,000
(2017: $1,810,707,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.59 per
share (2017: $0.60 per share), amounting to $212,400,000
(2017: $216,000,000) (note 10). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.



% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23

BN f#

©

)

BEXEE
AEEEREANTERNRRER
SEFEKCEMEE N KMFES LA
VI MET E SRR K T AR TR RO AR 7% B
BARABIEKABGREN T
HEDERIRRERER  WAEM
HHBAA TR

REBTHRANETELEALHE
BRIER AR R ERKE RS
HER = A B Bl 3R - AR E AR
AERABEFRERSFE - WE
EEEBEREEMAEERGERE -
HE-_Z-N\FR-_ZT—+tF=A
£+—H¢¢§'$%@mﬁgﬁw
M A o

INER B 48 3B BOR PR B 75 B R M A
% FRBEHEAABLERERS
MEBRKRERHEERLERE o stk
s AKEAETEAABHER
IRITE R AR AR A Bk R
I EmEE R \F
ZA=1t—HB AEENELEE
LEEAB14A%(ZZF—HF  1.4%) -
MIRTTERERECBBEITERE

BE 3£ 329,542,000 L (=& — 4 ¢

320,583,0007T) °

W

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2017:
1.4%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $329,542,000 (2017: $320,583,000).
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24 BIEEREERERAALEE
AEBSEIEFESBREFHEEE
B FIRMEERR -

e

BRAREEAERNRRE - ARAEERBNA
BEZSRARMNSIERREEBRMNE K
SRS o

(@ EERMRE
REEMEERREZ R A EKE
Ho BREEEMREERE AT
ETEERFTA X MEERR

LB 5 - HRAE BRI
BR-—E2BEENTF  A5HE
SELEREEG - ZIERPF
mEPBEEREIMRAENTENE
RIEERE ) Y EEREPEEER
HAZEEPRLMENKERE - R
H—RESAERIE  ERERE
—RBBTRETHEX - BHSEEH
B AREEEEENER THEaM
RFBEHEARBERTE - REEK
REFR 2 (218 1ERRUSE
HEE M -

AEEVTEEREERARETNE
T o DEFEPTRHEM G - RE B A
XHEERR ERASMBAAKRTE
Be@EEMREE(SHRRESE
) o AEBIW T H A B R E A
EEERREEMMER -

EEASERERERMELEEER
EBRAENHEME/LFEE SR
Bf5E14 o
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.
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BEEREERAAEE@® 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) RENEE R (b) Liquidity risk
REEMNBE T HERE R MEST The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
HRBIESHER  URBEETER liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
L BMRESTANRHEE B covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
RERITAREHEHNEERE - U cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities
MRS REARHSESTENK - to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
TR AEE ZITESHREBER The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
WMEBEKGE AN HHE LD BN at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
I8 ZENBERAEARTRR SRS financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
( BIE AR HF| R IZ R TR E BRI cash flows (including interest payments computed using
HRERMNE(NEZR)sTERNF contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
E'\ N ) RAEEERE LT A end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
B3R - be required to pay:

2018
BHRIE 1ERE BB1E BB
REE BERBAE BEBENE  BORE  BORSE RiB5E

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5years 5 years
r n r r r r
§000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiERZREERE  Other payables and acoruals 21,125 21,147 21,147 - - -
BiETE Deposits received 195,748 195,748 90,804 55,171 37,555 12,218
RATEAE Obligations under finance leases 46 46 29 17 - -
BITER — HHMm Bank loan — secured 200,000 204,891 3,216 201,675 - -
ERBTE Govemment lease premiums payable 1,857 2,859 - 159 477 2,223
418,776 424,691 115,196 257,022 38,032 14,441
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24 BISEMERERALERE@ 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)
(b) REBE SRR @ (b) Liquidity risk (continued)

2017
AAAITR 1ERH e BIES ERoF
REE HenBEE HEREAE  BONF EINSE i85

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
i it i 7t 7 7
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HifEfia R EEA  Other payables and accruals 16,719 16,742 16,742 = = -
B¥ETE Deposits received 196,213 196,213 75,009 86,638 33,566 -
BEREAE Obligations under finance leases 75 75 29 29 17 -
ROER —HEA Bank loan — secured 200,000 206,284 2,493 2,493 201,293 -
[ENBFHE Govemment lease premiums payable 1,920 3,018 - 159 477 2,382
413,927 421,332 94,273 89,319 235,358 2,382
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24 BIREMEERAALEBE@ 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(c)

(Continued)

2= [ e (c) Interest rate risk

REENMNERBREZERBRITE
o R EMRITEREARNEE AT
iﬁuméf‘ﬁﬂﬁw ° Z]S%%I%Eﬁ

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.
The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

BRI B AN T () B © monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

0 FEER )
TRAVRBEHRELER
AEBAAZEABERMNER

S BRI R -

Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings with significant interest rate risk

exposure at the end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
BRA=E BERA =
Effective Effective
interest rate Ft interest rate FT
% $°000 % $'000
EEMER Fixed rate borrowings:
FERTEUATH0(E Government lease premiums
payable 5.00 1,920 5.00 1,980
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
$RITE R — AKX Bank loan — secured 1.61 200,000 1.25 200,000
a=E Total 201,920 201,980
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BBEREERAREE@®

(©)

MERERE @)

(i) BUREDIT
R=_E—N\E=ZA=+—8
HEtE R L LR L TFRT75
(:%—tiﬁmg%'ML%
EEMATFEREZTTE
ﬁ%ﬁJ/ﬁM$¢l B8
i M) K2 (R B O M 401,253,000 7T
(ZZ—t&F 8 BPARE
ERR B B R R IR
B84 7 #835,0007T) °

LS RE DI R R EE)
(RERCNREMRER AR

E)EARBRBREN(=F
—tF : BRRER) (RE
m ) BN L o FLASER B PT
EERBEHRRERRET
BIEMTETAMEENBR DR

ENERRRME  AEERKR
Baf(ZE—+tF : BREE‘E

18) GRS ) 8 %

MEREEHHN BT HNFEL

FEELG - BEATRR
T FARMEELETT -

¥R

HRAEE BN R ZHABE
B - Fh I EAR E AR IMNE R o

s\ L fE3

N JU1E
$%E%%ﬁ$@lﬁﬁ%ﬁ3%
—F-N\FR—F +tF=A=t+—H

\Qﬁﬁﬁ$@ﬁik%ﬁmﬁﬁﬂ

o

il

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(©

(d)

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ 5B FE JEA R A 7

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 75 (2017: 50) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and the retained profits by approximately $1,253,000
(2017: increased/decreased the Group’s loss after
tax and decreased/increased the retained profits by
approximately $835,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (2017: loss after
tax) (and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of
the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (2017: loss after tax) (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2017.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.
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(LL8#® %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25

26

EERKER
AEEIZREBCGRFIIEATESFTEIERIDE
RE - RRBES(ERGOIDIERNESR
eR M AE B ([RERETEl]) - %4
BT EIRABM A A B R R R
RIRETE - BEBEARESEE - EXFEE
Y/BEIZ IR E B BB A B B5% AT 8 /EH 4
;i BE AMEBA S LR A30,0007T ©
Bros MR - AEE IR AR B L E B 47
% A E.30,000 T KI5% 1EH B FEIE ALK 1B
&S EES A A E40,000T AR © MarE
TE B R S ER AR B E B E A - M
FHEIEL A B R HR - AIERS S TR
WERT » NMEEFRERNFREER 7S
BEREERA - BERITMEEEER ARG
B ESNEFRYEEEMERREENE
IRABEASEENSEIER R EMEEK
AFRH R o

RAFER - HORKKHFBIERERSE
M e 53,000 (ZE — L& ¢
#/)  N_T—N\E=ZA=+—H £&H
I A Al B ARSI R (= — £ F -
1,0007T) °

EIE
R-ZE—N\F=A=+—BHRENMNMXKE
BTSRRI R B A REN T ¢

25

26

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $30,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by Cushman & Wakefield
Property Management Limited for building and property management
of ISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $3,000 (2017: Nil) were
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions (2017: $1,000) had yet to be applied by the
Group at 31 March 2018.

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2018 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2018 2017

T Tt

$'000 $'000

EEES) Contracted for - 611
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27 R=ZZE—N\HE=HA=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

TEATEBENE AR RER Position at 31 March 2018
2018 2017
BfaE F Tt
Note $°000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets
— REME — Investment properties 13,626,720 13,918,470
— HiWE - BENMKRE — Other properties, plant and equipment 67,837 71,966
13,694,557 13,990,436
KB A R A= Interest in subsidiaries 31,084 31,084
13,725,641 14,021,520
REBEE Current assets
FEUBRZR « 514 R IERIFK Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 18,005 21,510
EHIRRITIER Pledged bank deposits 10,295 134,981
HE RS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 516,145 385,081
544,445 541,572
REEE Current liabilities
HAub R B E B Other payables and accruals 21,089 16,693
BEETE Deposits received 194,267 193,732
REBRTS & M Provision for long service payments 1,485 1,513
FERIB B A RFRIAE Amount due to a subsidiary 27,482 27,482
R A EAIE Obligations under finance leases 29 29
NERES TS HR Current tax payable 14,541 19,775
258,893 259,224

FEREBEE Non-current liabilities

RITER — BEA Bank loan — secured 200,000 200,000

FERT BT H(E Government lease premiums payable 1,857 1,920

BT &R IE Obligations under finance leases 17 46

BRERIHA E Deferred tax liabilities 69,658 61,931
271,532 263,897

EEZRE NET ASSETS 13,739,661 14,039,971
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27 AZZE—N\E=A=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

TE A EEE AR TR @) Position at 31 March 2018 (continued)
2018 2017
M E Fr FT
Note $°000 $'000
EXRf#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
N Share capital 23(b) 360,000 360,000
it Reserves 13,379,661 13,679,971
e AR TOTAL EQUITY 13,739,661 14,039,971
BEEeR - N\F AT RARELT Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
AIEE o 27 June 2018.
Ea BE Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EW Director Director
28 HERARIMGRAEZEER 28 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party
EE2RA AKER=ZZ—N\F=A At 31 March 2018, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
=t+—HOEESARRRKIEES DR A ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
KEWEFRARMKEBERAR W MEA and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both
AR EMAKL - ERSARSHEIA of which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
HARNIBERE - R EETRDRERE produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
AT AR R o controlling party does not produce financial statements available for
public use.
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% B EMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

EHMEEBEZE=ZE—N\F
EH:-I-—EHLEF‘&'HEE
MEVEE] ~ FTERINZREN
AR e
HEAUBHRERZLBEH  FESMA
FSEEMBEMAEHE S —\F=A
=T HIEFEER ' INSBEAVBHRE
EAMEET - FEAIMRE o ELER| L
BRE TR EEHNIAR ©

29 Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments, new standards and interpretations which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2018 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

FEUT Bz %
FRHE R EXR
Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

(EBHBRELERDFEE (20145) R T A |

HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

201841 H1H
1 January 2018

(BAEMBERE

EANF 165 BB P T A RAIKA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BREFTER

1DFEA0RVERT IR EYE « REME 2 E# |

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property

B (BRABRS

REZEY)RBFE2R[IMER S RIANKE]

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

(BBUBRE

HRDNE165HE

HKFRS 16, Leases

B (BRABRE

REZEY)RBFE% SRR THEE L

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

201851 H18
1 January 2018

201841 H1H
1 January 2018

201851 H18
1 January 2018

201951 H1H
1 January 2019

201951 H18
1 January 2019

RUELEET  SERRRBEAG A
BORTEAE T -

HRBUEKR

=

=

The adoption of these amendments, new standards and

interpretations is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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Five Year Financial Summary
(L% 35|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 4 Results
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
FIT FT Fit +IT T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
WA Revenue 606,262 644,984 667,214 661,677 632,541
REYEME Profit/(loss) from operations
SBEBRENLE after valuation changes in
R (E58) investment properties 1,468,260 1,380,284 964,731 (65,928) 246,611
RVE A Finance costs (3,048) (2,398) (2,458) (3,374) (3,140)
BRELADER(BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,465,212 1,377,886 962,273 (69,302) 243,471
Fam Income tax (82,914) (87,507) (90,904) (89,813) (84,153)
DNEEERER Profit/(loss) for the year
EEAREE attributable to equity
wR(EE) shareholders of the Company 1,382,298 1,290,379 871,369 (159,115) 159,318
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FFEFHEHE Five Year Financial Summary
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BERERE Assets and Liabilities

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

T T i T 7

$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000

FEE Fixed assets 13,469,346 14,318,237 14,724,637 14,103,436 13,832,557
mMENEEFE Net current assets 213,755 230,725 71,289 308,792 314,641
13,683,101 14,548,962 14,795,926 14,412,228 14,147,198
RITER — B Bank loan — secured (200,000) (200,000) = (200,000) (200,000

FER BT HE Government lease premiums

payable (2,091) (2,037) (1,980) (1,920) (1,857)
BB ERE Obligations under finance leases @) (104) (75) (46) (17)
RERIEE & Deferred tax liabilities (39,675) @7,111) (54,792) (62,298) (70,042)
BERE NET ASSETS 13,441,331 14,299,710 14,739,079 14,147,964 13,875,282
BRA Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
[ Reserves 13,081,331 13,939,710 14,379,079 13,787,964 13,515,282
R TOTAL EQUITY 13,441,331 14,299,710 14,739,079 14,147,964 13,875,282
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